EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE R EEEE EEEEEEEE R EE R EEEE R EE R EEEEEE

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited

FrandBrpdmngd

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RE]E 7S MK 85 R A])

Stock Code: 01338

ARZERHE: 01338

Annual Report 2021
2021 FEH

* for identification purposes only

E 5

crpicpcpepemempemomepemopeEemememEcmememEeRemempepemememempemememememememememememepemepemememe@emeE el

0
7
g
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
5
7
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

cncipcpicpicipicpicpepepepepemepeme@pemememememememenemeneaencnemicaicnicnic@iei@]




CONTENTS

Financial Highlights

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Corporate Governance Report
Report of the Directors

Directors and Senior Management
Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five Years Summary

B

MBEHE

REE R

TRBEE
BEE W LM
TEEERERS

E=gHS
E=hmEEEAR
BRI S
FEBRmMEMEERER

REMBIRAR
FEEDREPR
HERERER
REMBHRRME
hFEPHHE



RMB’000 2021 2020
AR®T T —E-—-F Z—ZZE-FF
Revenue EER 273,604 275,987
Cost of sales 5 & A AR (174,573) (167,887)
Gross profit EA 99,031 108,100
Selling & distribution costs HE ko AR (84,307) (84,476)
Administrative expenses TR X (29,345) (27,332)
Operating loss KR (7,534) (2,804)
Loss before taxation AT EE (9,084) (4,038)
Income tax expense FSHIR X - -
Loss for the year attributable to KREIHEB AELZ

owners of the Company FANEE (9,084) (4,038)
Gross margin E AR 36.2% 39.2%
Net loss ratio FEEE (3.3%) (1.5%)
Loss per share (RMB cents) BRER (AR
Basic A (0.2872) (0.1277)
Diluted s (0.2872) 0.1277)
Revenue by Product Category
WA E @ER 27

84.9% 90.3%
14.7% 9.0%
0.4% 0.7%

( \ )
(AR%T %) e
4 N
h hair-
0 ;E;r%)%og&l%alr care products 232,166 249,230
Other household & personal care products
HtRARBEASEESR 40,259 ==
Skincare products
EBEEm 1,179 1,889
Total
&t 273,604 275,987
. J
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Revenue by Brand Category
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Dear shareholders of the Company,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”), |
present the audited annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Directors report that the total revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB273.6 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 0.9% from approximately
RMB276.0 million for 2020. The operating loss of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB7.5 million as
compared with an operating loss of approximately RMB2.8 million for
2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the net loss of the Group
was approximately RMB9.1 million, as compared with a net loss of
approximately RMB4.0 million for 2020.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
+ Jol i 3 (80

For further information on the operating performance of the Group,
please refer to the “Financial Review” section of this annual report.

For further information on the outlook of the Group, please refer to
the “Outlook” section of this report.

During the year under review, the Group continued to operate under
the value-chain-oriented business model, which enabled the Group
to control the cost of sales and operating costs at a sustainable level.

In January 2022, the IMF downgraded its global economic growth
forecast to 4.4% for the year. Such forecast was subject to a high
level of uncertainty such as the course of COVID-19 entering its third
year, the prospects of climate related natural disasters, and the rising
geo-political tensions, particularly around Ukraine.

The IMF went on to say that the downgrade is largely due to the
growth markdowns in the world’s two largest economies — the
United States and China. Global growth is expected to further reduce
t0 3.8% in 2023.

Looking forward, we plan to focus on two areas to drive the strategic
directions to sustain and develop our business in the midst of a
volatile business environment. In the short run, the Group intends to
continue building up a management team with strong experience in
both domestic and global HPC sectors, to regain the sales growth
momentum and profitability, and to improve investors’ confidence in
the Group. In the long run, the Group will continue to focus on
strengthening the business model and positioning to acquire market
shares from domestic and international competitors, maintaining a
multi-brand and multi-product strategy in HPC sectors, and
becoming a leader in the branded Chinese herbal HPC products.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to all shareholders, customers, suppliers,

banks, professional parties, and employees of the Group for their
continuous patronage and support.

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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Business Review

Having found the effective disseminations of our brand concepts
through cross-industry cooperations in the past, the Group
implemented a series of creative marketing strategies and programs
to cooperate with a number of well-known brands in different industry
sectors with a view to accelerating the publicity and to enhance
promotion of our brand image and branded products to potential
customers.

During the year under review, we made use of an intangible cultural
heritage “Puppetry” to publicize and promote our brand image,
triggering the purchase interests of our target consumers. Through
the cooperation with a veteran puppetry artist, we have produced a
series of Bawang Herbal Fairy animations. We have rolled out a co-
branded anti-hair fall haircare gift-pack known as “Cross-sector Co-
branded Puppetry Giftbox” for online sales. To strengthen our brand
image, we have created four distinct puppet characters and naming
them after Bawang branded products and Chinese herbs. These
characters gained publicity through video clips and participation in
cultural activities in various cities in China such as the China
Animation Exhibition. At the same time, discussion topics on “Bawang’s
contribution to the preservation of an Intangible Cultural Heritage —

Management Discussion and A
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Puppetry” were initiated on Bawang’s official Weibo and WeChat
accounts, which attracted substantial attention and discussions from
the audience with total views exceeding 15 million and attracted
media coverages by over 25 news agencies in China. Because of
these activities, the attentions of some readers were diverted to the
Group’s online sales platform, which drove up interest in our brand
and resulted in increased sales. Additionally, our creative marketing
strategy was recognised and we earned two 5S gold awards,
namely, “Upward 2021” 11th Entertaining Marketing Forum 5S Short
Video Marketing Prize and Nomination Award of Grand Prize in the
11th Entertaining Marketing Forum in December 2021.

During the year under review, we cooperated with Grain Mill (R ZRE &)
in the launch of a giftbox containing both Bawang Black Sesame
Shampoo and Grain Mil's Eruptive Hair-grow Black Sesame Pills,
which are both made from black sesame. The purpose of this cross-
industry cooperation and joint marketing effort is for enhancement of
consumers’ recognition of the functionality of Bawang haircare
products. For publicity and promotion of our brand in a novel way,
we cooperated with RIO cocktail (8¢BZEE /) in the launch of
giftboxes containing the products of both companies, which
enhances the recognition and influence of our brand in the young
generation.

During the year under review, we also cooperated with Baidu for
carrying out online forums for key opinion leaders and key opinion
consumers to interact with consumers in different industries for
ascertaining consumers’ specific requirements in haircare. To satisfy
their needs and to attract consumers, we had then tailor-made a
series co-branded haircare gift-pack known as “Bawang & Baidu-
MEUX in five different colours and vivid black” with a theme “In search
of a nearby designer who cares about you (S 1k EE REY & 2% :16M)",
which had the effect of successfully publicising and promoting our
branded products.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

During the year under review, we have set up a professional team to
promote our brand and to carry out instant sales of our branded
products online during live-streaming programs. Leveraging on
popular social media platforms, we publicized and promoted our anti-
hair fall branded products online through Little Red Book, Weibo, B
Station and Tik Tok.

To cultivate the haircare market segment of the young generation,
Bawang from time to time extends our presence into various college
campuses in China and participates in their orientation programs and
college festivals, for the purposes of giving away freebies and
sponsoring the students’ activities, while at the same time conducting
on-campus publicity herbal haircare education, which have the effect
of making more and more young people understand Bawang’s
haircare concept and the functionalities of Bawang branded haircare
products. During the year under review, to enhance the involvement
and strengthen the students’ understanding of Bawang’s brand
concept, the Group recruited 100 college students as Haircare
Ambassadors for promoting Bawang branded products on campus,
which enabled the selected student ambassador to have a deeper
understanding of different Bawang product series so that they can in
turn help to promote the Bawang branded products to their peers.
Additionally, the student ambassadors were assigned to regularly
assist the Group in on-campus publicity and promotion activities for
the purpose of increasing the exposure of Bawang products and
brands to young consumers. Apart from this, the Group participated
in the 19th College Students Advertising Festival (K24 & & ZiT£7)
through inviting entries of creative work to publicize and promote
Bawang branded products through poster designs and multimedia
videos. Selected winning entries have subsequently been adopted by
the Group in our displays in our points-of-sale, metro stations, public
transport, outdoor posters and industry exhibitions. Selected winning
video clips were also showcased in our online sales platforms, instore
TVs and outdoor screens for promoting our products.
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During the year under review, we continued to participate in
community welfare events so as to enhance our public image as a
responsible corporation. In particular, the Group made donations of
Bawang-branded HPC and antiseptic sanitary products to the
residents of COVID-19 infected areas in Guangzhou, and we donated
our Bawang-branded products to impoverished families in north
Guangdong and to impoverished children in Liupanshui, Guizhou,
which helped to publicise our corporate mission and enhance our
corporate image.

As at 31 December 2021, the Bawang brand distribution network
comprised approximately 866 distributors and nine KA retailers,
covering 22 provinces and four municipalities in China. Furthermore,
the Bawang-branded products were also sold in Hong Kong,
Thailand and Malaysia.

During the year under review, the Group enhanced its product
formula and upgraded packaging to promote new Royal Wind
branded shampoo products primarily for the online sales channel. As
at 31 December 2021, the Royal Wind brand distribution network
comprised approximately 866 distributors and nine KA retailers,
covering 22 provinces and four municipalities in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The Litao products mainly comprise shower gels and laundry
detergents, which target consumers living in the second-tier or third-
tier cities in China. The Group’s goal is to maintain market coverage
in the traditional channel. As at 31 December 2021, the Litao
products distribution network comprised approximately 866
distributors, covering 22 provinces and four municipalities in China.

The Herborn Chinese herbal skin-care product series targets white-
collar ladies in the age range from 25 to 45 who have relatively high
net incomes and who are dedicated to pursuing a healthy and natural
lifestyle. We sold the products through our online sales channel and
staff or group purchase.

The Group has established 13 online retailing platforms for our
Bawang, Royal Wind and Herborn branded products, of which two
were established during the year under review.

For the year under review, we obtained and/or renewed and/or
possessed the certificates and/or recognitions as follows:

— the permit for production of cosmetic products, which was
issued by Guangdong Medical Products Administration, which
is valid until March 2026;
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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— 10 Bawang-branded Chinese herbal shampoos and hair-care  —
series products have been recognised as “The 2019 New High-
Tech Products in Guangdong Province (R 4& = # BTE @)
by the Guangdong Provincial New Hi-tech Enterprise
Association (BHE & ZH M ERE) in December 2019 for a
period of three years until the end of 2022;

— our production process for hair-care and skin-care products  —
has been certified by SGS with a validity period until July 2022
as to meet the requirements of US FDA CFSAN by reference to
Cosmetic Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines
2008;

— our production process for hair-care and skin-care products —
has been certified by SGS with a validity period until July 2022
as to meet the requirements of 1ISO22716 by reference to
Cosmetic Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines
2007;

— we were accredited as Grade A credit rating taxpayer for 2020 —
by Guangzhou Municipal Tax Service of the State Taxation
Administration on 8 June 2021;

— we have been accredited as a “Committee Unit” until December  —

2023 by Guangdong Food & Drug Technology Association for
Evaluation & Certification;
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In October 2021, Bawang shampoo was awarded the “2021
Recommended Brand of the Mass Market of Traditional
Chinese Medicine Healthy Products” by the Consumption
Observation Office of Consumption Daily (&% H Y4 & &2
#AE); and

In December 2021, Bawang shampoo respectively won two
honors of “College Students Favorite Dynamic Brand” and
“College Students Favorite Youth Product” in the 28th China
International Advertising Festival Media Enterprise Exhibition Fair
(F28ETHBEEEEHRERRIRSS).

Key Risks and Uncertainties

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis and Outlook sections, the Company is
exposed to the following key risks and uncertainties which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

1.

Risks Relating to Our Industry

In recent years, it has been common for the Mainland
manufacturing enterprises to face continuously rising labour
costs and difficulties in employing skilled labour. Our Group’s
strategy in response is to reduce the production costs by
improving the degree of machine automation and efficiency.
Since the start of 2020, and during the year ended 31
December 2021, almost all business enterprises in the China
have been suffering from the unprecedented coronavirus
pandemic, corresponding prevention and control measures by
the government have been implemented to contain the spread
of coronavirus, if necessary. Whilst the Group will strictly follow
all these regulatory measures laid down by the government, the
Group will make every effort to ameliorate any adverse impacts
on its operations and economic impacts on itself and its
customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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2. Credit Risks Relating to Customers

Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually
intensifies following a weak economic performance. To minimize
credit risks, the management of the Group has appointed
dedicated staff members to handle procedures for determining
credit limits, credit approval and other monitoring procedures,
to ensure that follow-up actions with all receivables are taken in
a timely manner. In addition, the Group reviews the collectibility
of receivables at the end of a reporting period, to ensure that
sufficient impairment losses are recognised for uncollectible
debts. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
recognised impairment losses of approximately RMB0.9 million
in respect of trade receivables by adopting the expected credit
loss model.

3. Liquidity Risks

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
cash and cash equivalents at a level which is considered by the
management as sufficient, to satisfy the needs arising from the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effect of fluctuations of
cash flow. The Group’s management will continue to closely
monitor the use of cash.

4. Currency Risks

Sales to overseas countries denominated in foreign currencies
expose the Group to foreign exchange risks. The Group closely
manages and monitors foreign exchange risks to ensure that
appropriate measures are taken in a timely manner. The Group
will consider using hedging in respect of foreign currencies to
mitigate relevant risks as and when appropriate.

Environmental Protection

The Group is responsible for its impact to the environment arising
from its business operations. During the year under review, the Group
strictly complied with the local environmental regulations of the PRC.
The production of household and personal care products belongs to
the light industry, thus no pollutants are involved during the
manufacturing process and adverse impact to the surrounding
environment is minimal. The Group has been investing and
implementing various energy conservation projects in recent years, as
a result of which overall power consumption has drastically reduced.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Business Compliance

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group adopts an employee-oriented approach, which ensures
that all staff members are reasonably remunerated. To retain a quality
workforce, we strive to regularly improve, review and update our
human resources policy and our compensation and benefits. We also
provide training opportunities to upgrade the skills of our staff
members. We also care for the occupational health and safety of our
workers.

The Group’s major customers are categorised into three channels,
namely conventional distributors, key account hypermarkets and
supermarkets, and online sales (including online official flagship stores
and distributors). The credit terms granted to major customers are 30
to 90 days, which are in line with those of the credit terms granted to
other customers.

The Group maintains good relationships with its customers. We have
put in place handling procedures to receive and analyse the
customers’ complaints and make recommendations on remedial
actions with a view to improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a
fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Financial Review

Revenue

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue was approximately
RMB273.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately 0.9%
from approximately RMB276.0 million for 2020. The revenue through
the online sales channel was approximately RMB141.0 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 8.2% from approximately
RMB153.5 million in 2020, and the revenue through the conventional
sales channel increased by approximately 8.3% as compared with
2020.

The Group’s core brand, Bawang, generated approximately
RMB260.4 million in revenue, which accounted for approximately
95.2% of the Group’s total revenue by product category in 2021,
which remained relatively stable as compared with 2020.

The branded Chinese herbal anti-dandruff hair-care series, Royal
Wind, generated approximately RMB5.9 million in revenue, which
accounted for approximately 2.1% of the Group’s total revenue by
product category in 2021, and represented an increase of
approximately 18.9% as compared with 2020.

The natural-based branded shampoo, shower gel and laundry
detergent products series, Litao, generated approximately RMB6.2
million in revenue, which accounted for approximately 2.3% of the
Group’s total revenue by product category in 2021, and represented
a decrease of approximately 19.0% as compared with 2020.

The branded Chinese herbal skin-care series, Herborn, generated
approximately RMB1.2 million in revenue, which accounted for
approximately 0.4% of the Group’s total revenue by product category
in 2021, and represented a decrease of approximately 38.3% as
compared with 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

We sold our products through extensive distribution and retail
networks, and via conventional and online sales channels. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, a summary of our sales revenue in
percentage through different networks and/or channels is as follows:
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Network/Channel Conventional Online Total
WK/ RB B4 S a5t

(%) (%) (%)
Distributor pal il 42.2 25.3 67.5
Retailer TER 6.2 26.3 32.5
Total &t 48.4 51.6 100.0

In 2021, our products were also sold in Hong Kong, Thailand and
Malaysia. The sales to Hong Kong and the overseas markets
accounted for approximately 0.8% of our total revenue in 2021.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales in 2021 amounted to approximately RMB174.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately 4.0% as compared with
approximately RMB167.9 million in 2020. The overall increase in cost
of sales was mainly due to an increase in the cost of raw materials,
and the increase in cost of sales was also partly contributed by the
rental increases for factory and warehouse premises in 2021, which
led to an increase of manufacturing costs. Such increases were
partially offset by the decrease in costs of packaging and direct labor
costs. As a percentage of revenue, cost of sales increased from
approximately 60.8% in 2020 to approximately 63.8% in 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit decreased to
approximately RMB99.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 8.4% as compared with approximately RMB108.1
million for 2020. The gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 39.2% for 2020 to approximately 36.2% for 2021.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to an increase in the average
unit cost of production as aforementioned.

Other Income

During the year under review, other income increased to RMB8.1
million, representing an increase of 116.6% as compared with 2020.
Such increase was mainly attributable to an increase in reversal of
impairment losses in respect of property, plant and equipment and
an increase in the bank interest income.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Selling and distribution costs decreased to approximately RMB84.3
million for 2021, representing a very mild decrease of approximately
0.2% as compared with approximately RMB84.5 million in 2020.
Such decrease was mainly due to a decrease in salaries of sales staff
and logistics expenses, but such decrease was partially offset by an
increase in promotion expenses and social insurance contributions.
As a percentage of revenue, our selling and distribution costs
increased slightly from approximately 30.6% in 2020 to 30.8% in
2021.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB29.3 million, representing an increase of approximately 7.3% as
compared with approximately RMB27.3 million in 2020. Such
increase was mainly due to the increase in research and development
expenses and social insurance contributions, but such increase was
partially offset by the decrease in depreciation expenses and salaries
and bonuses. As a percentage of revenue, our administration
expenses were approximately 10.7% and 9.9% in 2021 and 2020,
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Impairment Losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables

For the year under review, the Group has recognised impairment
losses of approximately RMB0.9 million in respect of trade
receivables, following the management’s assessment on credit risk of
our financial assets by adopting the expected credit loss model (the
“ECL”) according to IFRS 9.

Operating Loss

The Group recorded an operating loss of approximately RMB7.5
million for 2021, as compared with an operating loss of approximately
RMB2.8 million for 2020, which was mainly because of the increase
in cost of sales and administrative expenses.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no interest on bank
borrowings was incurred (2020: RMBO0.04 million). Additionally,
interest on lease liabilities amounted to approximately RMB1.6 million
(2020: RMB1.2 million).

Income Tax

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had no income
tax expense (2020: Nil).

Loss for the Year

As a result of the combined effect of the above mentioned factors,
the Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB9.1 million for 2021,
as compared with a loss of approximately RMB4.0 million for 2020.

Loss and Total Comprehensive Expense for the Year
Attributable to Owners of the Company

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the Group
recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB8.9 million for 2021, as compared with a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately RMB4.0
million for 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Outlook

In late January 2022, the International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) revised
China’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) growth prediction for 2022
from 5.6% in October 2021 to 4.8%, with growth to edge higher
again to 5.2% in 2023.

The actual China’s year-on-year GDP growth significantly increased
to 8.1% in 2021 from 2.3% in 2020, which staged a faster recovery
than other major economies after recording its weakest growth rate
since 1976.

China has powered much of the world’s growth in recent years. The
IMF pointed to the collapse of its real estate sector and the prevailing
zero-Covid policy that has restricted travel, shut businesses and
reduced consumption, which hampered the economic growth of
China.

In the fifth session of the 13th National People’s Congress (“NPC”) of
China, the Chinese Premier announced a GDP growth target of
around 5.5% in 2022, which is a bit higher than that of the IMF’s
projection of 4.8% for this year. Some economic analysts indicated
that the growth target of around 5.5%, although below last year’s 8.1%,
will still likely outpace growth in many other major economies and
play a key role in the global recovery amid a lingering pandemic, the
Ukraine situation and mounting domestic economic pressure. They
went on to say that the target reflects that top policymakers are fully
aware of the difficulties faced by the Chinese economy, that China
will encounter many more risks and challenges this year, and that
China must keep pushing ahead to overcome these issues. Another
analyst believed that China has the conditions, capabilities and
confidence to achieve the 5.5% GDP growth target despite numerous
challenges and uncertainties.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Based on the above-mentioned economic predicts and analysis, the
Directors expect that the Chinese economy as well as the global
economy in 2022 and onward to 2023 tend to be unstable. The
Company should be very cautious in formulating its business
strategies and operational plans. Having said that, the prolonged
pandemic situation has developed a habit of the general public to
maintain their personal hygiene and health. The Group finds that
some consumers have shown their confidence in and reliance on
herbal household and personal care products. Hence, the Group may
continue to obtain some business opportunities.

The corporate theme for 2022 is “Continue our Growth at a Steady
Pace”.

For Bawang-branded products, the Group intends to adopt the
following strategies for publicity and promotion of its branded
products and enhancement of revenue: (1) we will continue to provide
consumers with quality domestic products, leveraging on the
consumers’ passion and confidence in China for domestic products
in promoting our branded products series; (2) we will appoint Internet
celebrities as brand ambassadors on a short-term basis to enhance
exposure of our brands, and drive up the sales revenue through
bonding between Internet celebrities and their followers; (3) we will
roll out dedicated promotional themes and different unique IP images
for various festivals together with fresh packaging of Bawang anti-hair
fall shampoo series to attract the attention of young consumers and
to arouse their purchase interests; (4) we will actively develop Bawang
toothpaste and shower gel products series to increase sales revenue;
(5) we will showcase our brand advertisements on underground
metros, buildings and public ground transports in first and second tier
cities; and (6) we will continue to promote Bawang branded products
through implanted commercials in live streaming programs, cross-
industry cooperations, and participating in move charitable
communities services with implanted commercials.
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For Royal Wind branded product series, the Group has successfully
rolled out four new anti-dandruff branded product series during the
second half of 2021 for sales through the conventional channels. The
Group will also sell these new products through the online sales
channel so as to attract more young consumers and to enhance
sales revenue of this brand.

For Litao branded product series, the Group will continue with its
household care brand positioning, and plan to launch a family-size
new fragrant shower gel. We will continue to sell these products
through our conventional channels.

For conventional channels, the Group will continue to deepen
cooperation and interaction with distributors by: (1) making use of
various festive days such as the Women’s Day, the Labour Day,
Dragon Boat Festival, Mid-Autumn Festival and the National Day
Holiday, the year-end shopping period and the shopping mall
anniversaries for carrying out promotional activities to increase sales
and continuing with the closed-encounter promotional activities at
key points-of-sale through showcasing various Chinese dance
performances so as to attract customers’ attention and enhance our
brand influence; (2) stimulating the sales revenues in certain regions
through enhancement of the new Royal Wind anti-dandruff shampoo
products through trendy packaging design to attract the young
consumer group; (3) strengthening the quality sales support services
offered to key accounts so as to stabilise the sales revenue
generating from this channel; (4) actively invigorating the point-of-
sales counters at various chain stores such as Hubei Zhongbai,
Wushang and Beijing Wumei; and (5) actively promoting the
development of customers in the beauty salon channel, actively
exploring the green field markets that have good sales potential and
new distribution network, and points-of-sale to increase sales.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021

HRERRMEREIER SR _ZF=
—FTH¥FERNEEREER D ME
EEBRVHm SEEFENMEEFREE
WIEEHE ARSI EZFEEEE - 1
ME@mEIEERA -

HREEDERIER SERTEE
BIREAEINRBEAM FTEHEDLR
EEREIEANABRT - SEHERH
TERBERRBEHE -

BNEREE SESEEBBTIE
ﬁﬂzéﬁ%#,\T ﬁPﬁE’J/\VEEﬁiE@U (1)F A

BERHER MEKE - SEHE

iﬁ”ﬁ?’éﬁ‘qﬂﬂ’ﬁﬁ‘%ﬁﬁ FEEME
5 5 B R B 5 5 R (2 35 1 B R B AR 0
HWE HEBEEEHMEEMZHRAEAR
MEFLS BASEPEANZEEEX
B ABIEBEEENIBRRBEAMEY
%77E’J?&%%Z)%\%%Eﬁﬂ%@%ﬁ@k%@%ﬂ
HEFMOER UWERHEMS

ol FEBERR W‘)JDﬁB‘iﬂEE’J
HE QREBYUEHEFPNELHER
ERF REZRENHEERA  @FEK
BEHILTEERS RBESMIERD
EEZRUHERROME ROER
HEXARXERBEFHAE BEBRAM
BHEBEINZATSRFTNEHERS
B ARINHE -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As for the online sales channel, the Group hopes to achieve stable
growth through implementation of the following plans:

(1) the Group will optimise the operations, stabilise market share
for hot sales items such as anti-hair fall haircare product series,
and the Group plans to expand our product offering to include
hair care essence oil products, to develop new ginger-series
products, and to create hot sales items in order to increase the
sales of online flagship stores;

(2) the Group will develop the live video-streaming channel by
making use of the channel broadcasters and scenes for
increasing the depth of our product mix, and we will enhance
cooperation with Internet celebrities while at the same time
strengthening our own live broadcast channel so as to increase
sales;

(8) the Group will endeavour to maintain the good relationship with
online distributors and to provide the main-stream online
platforms such as T-Mall, JD.com, Pinduoduo and Tik Tok with
products and services in line with consumers’ demands, and to
provide tailor-made products for key online distributors so as to
increase sales; and

(4) the Group will design a channel for effective marketing
communication of our brand concepts and products so as to
enhance brand awareness and favourable customers
perception.

Apart from this, the Group plans to develop live streaming resources
through some social media platforms to enhance sales revenue. In
addition to maintaining our existing customer resources, the Group
will leverage on active user-group networks and user-to-user
connections to other platform users to increase our sales revenue.

For production management, we have always put top priority on our
product quality. We will continue to strengthen our research and
development capability, to reasonably allocate our corporate
resources, to optimise our production processes to implement
initiatives to reduce utilities expenditure to reduce production costs,
and to enhance the training and development of production workers
to minimise spoilage and wastage in our production, so as to achieve
competitive cost advantage in the market.
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We will adopt a flexible supply chain management approach to plan
and design the production process so as to maximise the production
effectiveness and to optimise the utilisations of production facilities
and factory space.

For original equipment manufacturers (‘OEM”) business, we will
continue to make use of our professional design, research and
development capabilities, mature production management techniques
and advanced production infrastructures for expanding our OEM
business so as to generate additional revenue through strengthening
our customer base in different types of personal care products. We
target to establish stable business relationships with a couple of key
clients.

We believe that through the above-mentioned resources
management optimisations and workflow integration to maximise
production effectiveness, we can create more returns for our
shareholders.

As part of the business expansion plan, the Group will continue to
explore the possibility of engaging with potential distributors for
launching our branded products to other countries. The Group is
open to explore further business opportunities with potential overseas
distributors.

As of the date of this report, the Group does not have any
outstanding acquisition opportunity on hand, nor is actively exploring
business opportunities that may involve potential acquisition.
However, the Group is open to potential investment opportunities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies and
maintains a good and solid financial position. As at 31 December
2021, the time deposits, bank balances and cash of the Group were
approximately RMB113.3 million (2020: approximately RMB122.3
million). Of which, the total time deposits with various maturity dates
of the Group were approximately RMB54.0 million (2020: Nil). A
summary of liquidity and financial resources is set out below:
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31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
+=ZA=+—-H +ZHA=+—8H
RMB in million RMB in million

ARBEER ARBBEETT

Time deposits, bank balances and cash THER R1TESNLES 113.3 122.3
Total loans ff RiEEE 0 0
Total assets aEE 295.6 264.6
The gearing ratio’ BEAEBX' 0% 0%
Note: B sx -

1. Calculate as total loans divided by total assets

Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not engage in any material acquisition or disposal of
any of its subsidiaries or associates during the year under review.
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Exposure To Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
and Hedging

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in Mainland China,
with most transactions being settled in Renminbi. The reporting
currency of the Group is Renminbi. During the year under review, the
Group had exported its goods to Hong Kong and certain overseas
countries. The transactions were settled in either Hong Kong Dollars
or United States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank deposits are
mostly denominated in Renminbi. The Company will pay dividends in
Hong Kong Dollars if dividends are declared. The Directors are of the
view that the Group conducts its business transactions principally in
Renminbi and thus the exchange risk at the Group’s operational level
is not significant. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had not issued
any material financial instruments or entered into any material
contracts for foreign currency hedging purposes. However, the
Directors will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure of
the Group and are prepared to take prudent measures such as
hedging when required.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2021.

Capital Commitment
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material capital

commitment.

Charge of Assets

The Group had no charge of assets as at 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to applicable statutory provisions of the Cayman Islands,
the Company had no reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had inventories of approximately
RMB40.8 million, representing an increase of approximately 49.5%
compared with approximately RMB27.3 million for 2020. Such increase
was primarily due to the inflation of raw materials prices leading to an
increase in their book value. Moreover, in response to the price
fluctuations in raw materials, the Group has selectively increased its
stock of certain raw materials. Additionally, the promotional activities
for online and live-streaming sales platforms caused an increase in the
stock of finished goods. But such increases were partially offset by the
decrease in the stock of packaging materials and work-in-progress.

The Group adopts a prudent approach in valuing its inventory. The
Group continuously monitors the inventory levels of its different raw
materials, packaging materials and finished goods, and based on
feedback from the sales force on the various product lines and sales
figures, the management regularly identifies the inventory levels of
individual inventory items to determine whether there is any slow
moving or obsolete items or finished goods. On this basis, the
management will devise actions to be taken in relation to such
inventory prior to their obsolescence, and/or whether provision
should be made.

Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB20.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 9.5% compared with approximately RMB22.1 million
for 2020. Such decrease was primarily due to the decrease in the
overall sales through online and conventional channels leading to a
decrease in trade receivables.

Some of the Group’s sales are made on credit, trade receivables are
resulted when the goods and titles have been delivered and passed,
respectively. The management regularly reviews the credit quality of
the Group’s customers and their partners to evaluate whether
provision should be made.
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Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2021, the trade and other payables of the Group
was approximately RMB83.5 million (2020: approximately RMB81.1
million). The increase was primarily due to the increase in trade
payables, but such increase was partially offset by the decrease in
other payables and accruals. As at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020, trade and other payables did not include any
balances due to related parties.

Human Resources

To provide incentive to the employees of the Group, the Group is
committed to staff training and development under any economic
circumstances. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees. The Group will continue to invest in our human capital so
as to retain a quality workforce to achieve our organisational goal.

In 2021, the Group organised various in-house training classes to
strengthen the soft skills of our staff members such as time
management, stress management, and leadership development.
Apart from these in-house courses, the Group also required our
department managers to attend external courses on reward and
compensation, and motivation, we required our senior sales and
marketing staff to attend brand positioning strategy course, and we
required our finance and accounting staff members to attend
seminars about the latest legislative/regulatory compliance,
accounting standards, taxation practices and budgetary control.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed approximately 499
employees (31 December 2020: approximately 477), consisting of
full-time employees and contract personnel in the PRC and Hong
Kong. The total personnel expenses, comprising wages, salaries and
benefits, amounted to approximately RMB54.7 million for 2021 (31
December 2020: approximately RMB55.9 million).

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the total headcount of
our employees and contract personnel as at 31 December 2021 and
2020:
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=+—H:4477%) ERBIEEFRBEM
EAENEBEEURANEE  AS 4
AYXBEREIE HFeMEN BR_ZT=——
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“A=t+—H:HARKESBIHETL) °

TRV -_ZE-_—F+_-_HA=+—H
M _ZE-EFE+ A=+ —HEMHE
EERAHIEERBM:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

—EB-—fF —E-FF

+=—BA=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H

Full-time employees 2BEE 222 200
Contract personnel EHREE

— Sales persons — {28 0 0

— Others —HA 277 277

Total employees HwWES A 499 477

The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are AEEFEMEEHMN ZA R IE =R

based on individual job responsibilities, work performances,
professional experiences and the prevailing industry practices.

Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong join social insurance
contribution plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme,
respectively. Other benefits include performance-based incentive
bonus scheme and share options granted or to be granted under the
share option schemes.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources policies play
a crucial part in the further development of the Group. Promising
career prospects, good staff remuneration and benefits as well as
pleasant working environment are essential factors for maintenance
of a stable workforce for the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
e g

The Corporate Governance Code and the
Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate governance
of the Group, and the Board reviews and updates all such necessary
measures in order to promote good corporate governance.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year under review.

Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised six members,
including the Chairman, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. CHEN Zheng He (the “CEQ”), the Chief Financial Officer
and three independent non-executive Directors. Biographical details
of the Directors are set out in the section headed Directors and
Senior Management on pages 62 to 67 of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring the Group’s
strategies and policies, approving annual budgets and business
plans, evaluating the performance of the Group and supervising the
work of management. The management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group under the leadership of the CEOQ.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Company. These
responsibilities include implementing decisions of the Board and
directing and co-ordinating day-to-day operation and management of
the Group. The Board reviews these arrangements periodically to
ensure such arrangements remain appropriate to the Group’s needs.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

To satisfy the independence requirement of the independent non-
executive Directors, the Board must determine that the independent
non-executive Directors do not have any direct or indirect material
relationship with the Group. The Board follows the requirements set
out in the Listing Rules to determine the independence of Directors.
Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 3
years.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated in order to
reinforce their independence and accountability. Except that the
CEO, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, is the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the
Directors are not otherwise related to each other.

The Board held six meetings in 2021. Each of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi attended all meetings.

The Company has adopted the nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) and the board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) as
required by the Corporate Governance Code and the Listing Rules,
respectively, and has taken into account the diversity of the Board
when selecting the candidates from a number of perspectives as
stated in the Diversity Policy as published on the Company’s
webpage.

Nomination Policy

Either the secretary or the chairman of the Nomination Committee
shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and may invite
nominations of candidates from the Board members, if any, for the
Nomination Committee to consider prior to its meeting. The
Nomination Committee may also nominate candidate(s) who are not
nominated by any member of the Board. For filling a casual vacancy,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendation(s) for the
consideration and approval of the Board. For proposing candidate(s)
to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation to the shareholders of the Company for approval.
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In order to provide information on the candidate(s) nominated by the
Board for election at a shareholders’ general meeting, and to invite
nominations from the shareholders, a circular will be sent to the
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the Listing
Rules. The relevant circular will at a minimum set out such information
about each proposed candidate, as required under the applicable
laws, rules and regulations, the Company’s constitutional documents
and the Listing Rules. A shareholder may serve a notice to the
Company Secretary within the lodgment period of its intention to
propose a resolution to elect a certain person as a director without
the Board’s recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s
nomination. The particulars of the proposed candidates will be sent
to all shareholders for information by a supplementary circular.

In assessing the suitability of a potential candidate, the Nomination
Committee would consider factors, including but not limited to,
candidate’s personal integrity and character, accomplishment and
experience that are relevant to the Group’s business, and diversity of
the Board in accordance with the Diversity Policy.

Diversity Policy

In achieving diversity of the Board, a number of aspects of each
director candidate will be considered, including but not limited to
gender, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. All Board
appointment will be based on meritocracy, and the candidates will be
considered based on the objective criteria as set out in this policy
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Diversity Policy and has followed the Nomination Policy and the
Diversity Policy in the nomination of the new Director(s).

The Board has reviewed the appropriateness of an express diversity
quota or measurable objective in achieving board diversity, and will
propose a female member to the Board in the upcoming Annual
General Meeting. Upon appointment of the female member of the
Board, the Board will have members of both genders. The Board has
concluded that for the time being, the selection of Board members
should continue to be based on the above said diversity perspectives
instead of setting an express quota or objective.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which, the decision to declare a dividend or a distribution
will be at the discretion of the Board. The Company intends to
declare dividends to shareholders semi-annually in an aggregate
amount per year not exceeding 30% of the anticipated consolidated
net annual profits and may declare special dividends from time to
time in addition to interim or final dividends. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account (including but not limited to) the
Group’s operations and earnings, development needs, cash flow,
financial condition, capital and other reserve requirements and
surplus, contractual and financial restrictions and any other conditions
or factors which the Board considers relevant and having regard to
the directors’ fiduciary duties. While sharing the profit with
shareholders, the Company shall also maintain sufficient reserves to
ensure the implementation of the Group’s strategy for development.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
laws of Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong,
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company and
those laws, regulations and memorandum and articles of association
to which the subsidiaries of the Group are subject.

The Divided Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and
there can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any specific periods.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

Update on Directors’ Information

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, an independent non-executive Director, ceased
to be an independent non-executive director of China
Communications Construction Company Limited (Stock Code: 1800.
HK) from February 2022.

Remuneration of Directors and Chief Executive

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the Chief Executive
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements. Other than the Directors and the
Chief Executive, there is no other member of senior management.
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Directors’ Training

Under Code Provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors are arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics are issued to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

As of 31 December 2021, all Directors (being Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi) received regular updates on
the Group’s business, operations, risk management and corporate
governance matters, and participated in the directors’ training offered
by professional bodies and/or arranged by the Company. Materials
on new or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the
Group were provided to the Directors. Directors are requested to
provide their records of training they received to the Company
Secretary for record and annual review by Nomination Committee.
During the year under review, the Directors received an aggregate of
approximately 324.3 hours of training in various fields with a
breakdown as follows:

2021 Directors’ Training by Topic
TR -FESBERIXE

B
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R MEHME MBS EE NERES
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RPN ARG SR WA R T
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AoEmERELE REEEL REL

ERTBBLYUEEEREBASEE
B 2E RRBREERCEEREENG
WMEEH AR EAEERERMEN/
KARALTHNE)  EEEREEA
RAEBENFHITESLZERKENRNEES
FERENzEESH - EEAEAMARWE
REFEMEIFINLEUETEN
MRELZEEMFEEN - RRBFE
W BEEFEEXELFTH3243/NEMHE @
BIEMEE - AT ROT

t Hp

Hong Kong Financial Economy/ Business

Legislative/  Director’s Reporting/ Capital Management/
Average per person: Regulatory Duties/ESG Taxation/Risk Market Investor
approximately 54.1 hours Compliance Practices Management Updates Relationship Others'

BEBEG/ EEBE/ MmE/ g/

EEREN RE g B/ SEmS XEEE/
BAFTY 541/ B RERER [ BB B BH @ REEBEE Hi'
Executive Director HITESE
Mr. CHEN Qiyuan FeR BSJR ST A& v v v v 4 4
Mr. CHEN Zheng He B IF #5 5t & v v v v v v
Mr. WONG Sin Yung HEEREE v v v v v v
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Hong Kong Financial Economy/ Business
Legislative/  Director’s Reporting/ Capital Management/
Average per person: Regulatory Duties/ESG Taxation/Risk Market Investor
approximately 54.1 hours Compliance Practices Management Updates Relationship Others'
BEEH EEBE/ MR E/ KR/
EEREN RE g B/ cmHiE EKEE/
BATH  H541/N B BT RERER B b B BH @ REEEER Hi'
Independent
Non-executive
Directors BYFHITES
Dr. NGAI Wai Fung mEEEL v v v v v v
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing ~ SREE& 5t 4 v v v v v
Dr. WANG Qi THEL v 4 4 v v 4

1. Include topics such as technology transfer and industry association internal training,

etc.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, and our two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. CHEUNG Kin
Wing is the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendation
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating
to all Directors and senior management of our Group, review
performance based remuneration and ensures that none of our
Directors determine their own remuneration. If necessary, the
Remuneration Committee will have access to independent advice.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2021. Each of
Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung
attended all meetings.

During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed the
remuneration structure of the Directors.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, and our two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is the
chairperson of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and the re-
election of Directors.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in 2021. During the
meeting, the committee members reviewed the senior management
structure of the Group and the re-election of Directors. All committee
members attended all meetings.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

As at 31 December 2021, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
two of whom possess the appropriate business and financial
experience and skills to understand the accounts of the Group. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee is chaired by Dr. NGAI Wai
Fung and the other members are Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr.
WANG Qi.

The written terms of reference which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit and Risk Management Committee was prepared
and adopted in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Audit and
Risk Management Committee is required, amongst other things, to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, to review accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, to engage independent legal or other advisers as it determines
necessary and to perform investigations.

During the year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee has
performed the following:

— met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope and
findings of their annual audit and interim review work;

— reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of the
external auditor’s remuneration;
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— made recommendations to the Board on the reappointment of
the external auditor;

— reviewed the external auditor’'s independence, objectivity and
the effectiveness of the auditing process;

— reviewed the annual and interim reports and annual and interim
results announcements of the Company;

— reviewed the effectiveness and the implementation of the
Group’s internal audit and risk management function;

— discussed auditing, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters of the Company before
recommending them to the Board for approval; and

— reviewed the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
report with the management and the external auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board.

In 2021, all issues raised by the external auditor and the Audit and
Risk Management Committee have been addressed by the senior
management of the Company. The work and findings of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee have been reported to the Board.
During the year, no issues were brought to the attention of the senior
management of the Company and the Board of sufficient significance
for disclosure in this annual report.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held three meetings in
2021. Each of Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr.
WANG Qi had attended all three meetings.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for
performing the functions set out in the Code Provision D.3 of the
Corporate Governance Code.

During the year under review, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee met three times to review the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and the compliance of the Company with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company, and for ensuring that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

A statement from the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021, is set out on pages 73 to 75 of the annual
report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Internal control and risk management

The Board is responsible for making appropriate assertions on the
adequacy and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and procedures and to resolve material internal
control defects. The Board together with the senior management of
the Group are jointly responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control of the Group so as to ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations of the Group in achieving
the established corporate objectives, safeguarding assets of the
Group, rendering reliable financial reporting and complying with the
applicable laws and regulations.
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During the year under review, the management of the Group, through
its daily management activities, gathers information on the Group’s
business, receives reports from the internal control function of the
Group, and analyses feedback from frontline and back office staff to
identify risks in the Group’s business, operation, financial conditions
and future expansion plans. Significant risks that are identified are
presented to the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
Board on an ongoing basis.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board is
responsible for reviewing reports and proposals submitted. The Audit
and Risk Management Committee will consider such risks and
recommend to the Board measures that should to be taken to
address them. Where appropriate, management of the Group will
assist the Audit and Risk Management Committee in submitting
proposals to the Board to address risks faced by the Group.

Based on the risks identified by the Group’s management and the
Group’s internal control function, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee will also regularly review and report to the Board as to
whether the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective, whether there are adequate resources (including
budgetary support for the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, staff with adequate qualification and
experience) for the implementation of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, and whether measures are in place to
ensure that the staff are suitably trained for this purpose. The
Directors will then collectively decide on what actions should be
taken.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group covering all material controls such as financial, operational
and compliance controls, and save as mentioned above, the Board
considers that these systems and controls are well established to suit
the Group’s needs and are effective and adequate.

The Directors recognise that the Group’s risk management and
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Handling and disclosure of inside information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information (as defined under the Listing
Rules), the Company is fully aware of its obligations under Chapter 13
of the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
Board reviews from time to time its internal guidelines on inside
information or potentially price sensitive information with reference to
its own and industry circumstances and also makes reference to the
“Guide on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission in considering its obligations to make a
disclosure. The Company’s policy strictly prohibits unauthorised use
or dissemination of confidential or inside information and has
established and implemented procedures for responding to external
enquiries about the Group’s affairs, including the provision of an email
address for external enquiries. The Company Secretary also regularly
sends out reminders to the directors, senior management and
employees reminding them of their obligations with respect to inside
information under the relevant statutory provisions and Listing Rules.

All media communication activities are restricted to persons
appointed by the Board for the role in order to protect the interests of
the Company and keep inside information strictly confidential prior to
its disclosure.

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) dispatching printed copies of corporate
communication documents to shareholders; (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board; (i) latest and key information of the
Group is available on the website of the Company; (iv) press
conference and briefing meetings with investors, shareholders and
analysts may be set up from time to time to provide updated
information about the Group, and; (v) the Company’s registrars serve
the shareholders in respect of all share registration matters. The
Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with
the Board or the management directly. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the Chairmen and/or other members of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and the Remuneration Committee will
normally attend the annual general meetings and other shareholders’
meetings of the Company to answer questions raised.
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The Company convened two shareholders’ general meetings in 2021,
the first being the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) for the year
2020 which was held on 4 June 2021 reviewed and approved a
number of resolutions such as the financial statements for the year
2020, Report of Directors and appointment and remuneration of
auditors of the Company, and an Extraordinary General Meeting (the
“EGM”) was also held on 4 June 2021 for the approval of the 2021
lease agreement in relation to the renting of production facilities,
office premises and staff dormitory. All the Directors, namely Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI
Wai Fung and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi had
attended both the AGM and EGM.

Company Secretary

The company secretary is Mr. WONG Sin Yung, an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
WONG is also our executive Director and Chief Financial Officer. He
assists the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that the policy and procedures of the Board are followed.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. WONG has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
by sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board.
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Contact details are as follows:

Address: Suite B, 16/F Ritz Plaza,
122 Austin Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of Mr. WONG Sin Yung,

Company Secretary)
Fax: +852 3114 8819
Email: IR@1338.hk

Constitutional Documents

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles. An up-to-date Articles is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders
may refer to the Articles for further details of their rights.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remunerations paid/(payable) to the Company’s independent
external auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, for the year ended
31 December 2021 in relation to audit services and non-audit
services (including the review of the Company’s interim results
announcement and interim report for the year 2021, respectively)
were approximately RMB994,000 and RMB160,000 respectively.
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The Directors submit this Report of Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are the designing, manufacturing,
trading and distribution of Chinese herbal products, including
shampoo products, hair-care products, skin-care products, and
household cleaning products. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 165 to 166 of this
annual report.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group, together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that had occurred
since the end of the financial year 2021, as well as indication of likely
future developments in the business of the Group are set out in the
sections “Business Review” on pages 9 to 15, “Key Risks and
Uncertainties” on pages 15 to 16, “Environmental Protection” on
page 16, “Business Compliance” on page 17, “Relationship with
Employees, Customers and Suppliers” on page 17, and “Outlook” on
pages 22 to 26 of this report respectively. An analysis using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the sections “Revenue and
Segment Information” on pages 125 to 129 and “Five Year Financial
Summary” on page 167 in this report.

Dividends

Following a review of the operating results of the Group, the Board
does not recommend the payment of any final dividends in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 76 of
this annual report.
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Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the financial year 2021 are set out on pages 79 and
158 of this annual report respectively.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2021, sales made to the
Group’s five largest customers and the largest customer accounted
for approximately 27.0% and 14.5%, respectively of the total sales of
the Group. The Group purchased approximately 40.5% and 16.7%,
respectively of its goods and services purchased from its five largest
suppliers and the largest supplier.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 167 of this annual
report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of the movements in the share capital of and the share
options granted by the Company are set forth in notes 28 and 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Changes in Equity

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity as
contained in the audited consolidated financial statements of the year
(page 79 of this annual report).

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or

the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Principal Subsidiaries

Please refer to note 36 of the audited consolidated financial
statements for details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2021.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
under review.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the Share Option Scheme described below, the Group has
not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the year.
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Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float with at least 25% of the Shares held by the
public as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of assets of our Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur about the execution of
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force and was in force throughout
the financial year. For the year under review and as at the date of this
report, the Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against the directors of the Company.

Management Contracts
No contract concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Directors
The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
CHEN Zheng He (Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Sin Yung cra

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung php, CPA, FCCA, FCG, HKFCG (P.E.), MCIArb
CHEUNG Kin Wing rca, cra
Dr. WANG Qi

Directors’ Biographies and re-election of Directors

Details of the Directors’ (for the year ended 31 December 2021)
biographies have been set out on pages 62 to 67 of the annual
report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of our executive Directors (other than Mr. CHEN Zheng He) has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 4 July 2015. Mr. CHEN Zheng He has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 20 October 2014. All these service
agreements are automatically renewable upon expiration, unless
terminated by not less than six months’ written notice served by
either party to the service agreement on the other or in accordance
with the provisions set out in the relevant service agreement.

For the independent non-executive Directors, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years from 4 July 2021. Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years from 13 November 2020. Dr. WANG Qi has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years from 17
April 2021.

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into any service
contract with the Company which cannot be terminated by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments for the Directors are determined with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, experience, responsibilities
and performance of the Group. The Directors may be benefited from
fees, salaries, housing allowances, other allowances, benefits in kind
or bonuses in accordance with their respective service contracts.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As of 31 December 2021, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into the register that was required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and

i 65 4 (B0

EFEREEITRAARFTLFRMG -
HEEMRREEDEANER R *

debentures of the Company =
Number of
ordinary  Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying issued share
ordinary capital of the
shares of the Company
Company held A A E
Name of director/ BELF 2817
chief executive Long/short position in HEBRK Az
EE/BERTHRAER ordinary shares Nature of interest HBEEER EHZBEDL
= EZBERPZH/IRE EatE IR 8B (W)
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation
PR BROIR (B 3E1) HE PR 1% 1% B 4 25
CHEN Zheng He (Note 2) Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation
Bk 1 85 (fT5E2) Sy P12 5 B
WONG Sin Yung Long Beneficial owner 2,100,000 0.07%
HER A EnEB A
Notes: FTsE -

CHEN Qiyuan was deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the
Company held by Fortune Station Ltd. (“Fortune Station”) by virtue of CHEN Qiyuan
holding 50.43% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station. The remaining 49.57%
of the issued share capital of Fortune Station was held by Heroic Hour Limited (“Heroic
Hour”). Heroic Hour’s entire issued share capital is held by CHEN Zheng He as trustee
for himself and on behalf of his six brothers and sisters. The beneficial interests of
CHEN Qiyuan’s five children under the age of 18, namely CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng
Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in Heroic Hour,
representing 65.00% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour, were also attributable
to CHEN Qiyuan.

CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the shares of Fortune Station held by
Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters). Therefore CHEN Zheng He was
deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the Company held by Fortune
Station.

BIER(REERERDT

B %5 IR BXUR #5 A Fortune Station 2 50.43% 2 B #
17 B 19 - PR BR R %% 45 & % A Fortune Station Ltd.
[Fortune Station | 7 #% & #71,900,840,000 f& 2 7]
% 17 & # %5 ° Fortune Station B9 H $249.57% E %%
77 P& 7 /1 Heroic Hour Limited (I Heroic Hour )5
B MBREBIERAITEARE RENMURKE
B Heroic Hour ) & & 2 1T IR A - B[R BUR18/E
B AT 8 A AL 7 %+ BICHEN LiZi* CHEN Zheng
Sheng * BRIE 5  BR #ff & & Chen Bo Ling FT & # ¥
A #965.00% Heroic Hour B 8 1T & R TR 1R & 57 /8

BEREBEAITARBREAUBHKESR
Heroic Hour ) 2 0 2 % 77 A& 78 M # 18 /& 5 Heroic
Hour £ Fortune Station#) # == # # A # = ©
Itk BR IE #5 #% 1 /& # 4 Fortune Station T 35 & &9
1,900,840,000 fix 22 @] A% 15 #) 4 &% °
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of associated corporations

ESEREETHRA R HEBERNK
fo-HHRKMRREEBEPZERH
=

Approximate
Number of percentage of

ordinary interest in
Name of director/ Name of shares held associated
chief executive associated Long/short BEH corporation
EZ/RETHRAE corporation Nature of interest position ZER REBEZEYP
zH HELE RS EEHtE HIRR ROEE <EZEIL
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Fortune Station Beneficial owner Long 20,000 50.43%
BR RO (B 3E1) EmBAA Sy
Interest of children under Long 12,777 32.22%
the age of 18
AMIBHF R m Sy
Other Long 6,880 17.35%
Hit e
CHEN Zheng He (Note 2) Fortune Station Interest in controlled corporation  Long 19,657 49.57%
PR IE#5 (Fid 5 2) P12 A B S
Notes: B s
1. CHEN Qiyuan was the beneficial owner of approximately 50.43% of the issued share 1. P& BR A& Fortune Station 2 %2 17 1% 2K #9 #950.43% &

capital of Fortune Station. The beneficial interests of CHEN Qiyuan’s five children under
the age of 18 in Heroic Hour, representing 65.00% of the issued share capital of
Heroic Hour, were also attributable to CHEN Qiyuan. Heroic Hour held approximately
49.57% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station.

2. CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the interests of Fortune Station held
by Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters).

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, so far as
known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, neither the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into in the register that was required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders of the Company

As of 31 December 2021, so far as known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, shareholders (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register that was required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

o 6 1ok (B)

APNBETERENERZRR
NP
IR 2
BARAMEMEESESTHRAEMN

MR —E-—F+-A=t—H KX
(RARREZTHRSTHRABIN) REK
MAEBEROTEEREIES RBE K
PIE336HEREAECLNFFENE LM
AR ESSORB T

Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shares issued share

of the Company capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest held Company
RAFE
BENLAR BITRAHZ
EBER EEEIK
KRR &R EEME R4 #A (WE)
Fortune Station Beneficial owner 1,900,840,000 (L) 60.12%
ERBEAA
Heroic Hour Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 942,199,659 (L) 29.80%
PREGDEE R (HRE1)
WAN Yuhua (Note 2) Interest of children under the age of 18 612,429,778 (L) 19.36%
& EE (fFsE2) RNMm18ER A F & 2 #E %
CHEN Cynthia Yuping (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
BR &E 57 (M9 51 3) BErEXEm A GEMIBE)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
EH A,
CHEN Li Zi (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN LI Zi (Fff 5£3) EEXaAGERBIET)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
EH A,
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Note 3) Beneﬁciary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Fff 3£ 3) FEiExa AGEREET
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
EH A,
BIER(EE)ERERRAE —ZB=Z—FFR8
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Approximate
Number of percentage of

ordinary shares issued share
of the Company capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest held Company
NN
BENLR BITRAHZ
ZER EmEIH
RERERE ERME gk =] (R &)
CHEN Zheng Yan (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
PR IE 72 (451 3) BEEXm A GEMIBERT)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H At
CHEN Ya Shan (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
PR A= (M9 5E3) X @m A GERIBEEE)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H At
CHEN Bo Ling (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a discretionary trust) 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Bo Ling (Fff £3) ErEX @A GERIEER)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
EH A,
(L)—Long Position
L—tFE
Notes: B 3 -
1. Heroic Hour was the beneficial owner of approximately 49.57% of the issued share 1. /& # Heroic Hour /& Fortune Station 2 3 17 i 78 #9 #)

capital of Fortune Station and was deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Fortune Station.

2. The beneficial interests of WAN Yuhua's five children under the age of 18, namely
CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo
Ling in Heroic Hour, representing 65.00% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour,
were also attributable to WAN Yuhua.

3. The interests of CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng
Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling were held as beneficiaries under a trust,
which held 100% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour.

Other than as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2021, the
Company has not notified by any person (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Share Option Scheme

The Company currently has in place a share option scheme, the
purpose of which is to give the Directors, senior management and
employees of the Group an opportunity to have a personal stake in
the Company and help motivate its employees to optimise their
performance and efficiency, and also to retain employees whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and profitability
of the Group.

The current scheme was adopted on 29 May 2020 (the “2020 Share
Option Scheme”), which replaced the previous share option scheme
that expired on 19 May 2019. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the 2020 Share Option Scheme would remain in force for
10 years from the date of it becoming unconditional. All conditions for
the adoption of the 2020 Share Option Scheme have been fulfilled on
2 June 2020.

The eligible participants of the 2020 Share Option Scheme may
include, among others, directors, employees, consultants,
professionals, customers, suppliers, agents, business or joint venture
partners, advisors and contractors of the Group or a company in
which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30.0% (or such other
percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of Shares issuable to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1.0% of the Shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval at a
general meeting.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2020 Share Option Scheme shall be 316,244,072
shares, representing 10.0% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.
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Share options granted to a connected person (or its associates) of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted, upon payment
of an option price to be determined by the Board from time to time.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Board, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the share options.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for which an
option must be held or the performance targets which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the
2020 Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board, but
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the Offer
Date; and (jii) the nominal value of a Share.

An offer of a grant of share options shall be deemed to have been
accepted and a share option to which the offer relates shall be
deemed to have been granted and accepted and to have taken effect
when the Company, within 21 days from the date on which a share
option is offered to an eligible participant, receives the duly signed
offer letter from the grantee together with the number of shares in
respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated therein and a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 (or such other sum in any
currency as the Board may determine) in favour of the Company as
consideration for the grant of share option thereof.

Since the effective date of the 2020 Share Option Scheme and up to
31 December 2020, no share option was outstanding under the 2020
Share Option Scheme, and there was no share option granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the 2020 Share Option Scheme
since its effective date and up to the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and in prior years, the Group
had the following connected transaction(s) and continuing connected
transaction(s) in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
that were not fully exempt under the Listing Rules:

1. Lease Agreement for the Group’s production facilities,
office premises and staff dormitory

On 17 November 2020, & M £ T 1t & & A BR 22 7 (Guangzhou
Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.*) (“Guangzhou Bawang’) as
lessor and % F (EM) AR A7 (Bawang Guangzhou Co.,
Ltd.*) (“Bawang Guangzhou”) as lessee entered into a lease
agreement (the “2020 Lease Agreement”) for the Group’s
production facilities, office premises and staff dormitory (“Leased
Premises”), which are located at 468 Guanghua 3rd Road,
Bawang Industrial Complex, Baiyun District. The 2020 Lease
Agreement was for an original term from 1 December 2020 to
30 November 2021.

On 23 April 2021, Guangzhou Bawang as lessor and Bawang
Guangzhou as lessee entered into a lease renewal agreement
(2021 Lease Agreement’) pursuant to which Guangzhou
Bawang has agreed to lease to Bawang Guangzhou Leased
Premises at a monthly rental of RMB1,090,000 for the period
from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024 and RMB1,240,000 for the
period from 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2026 for a fixed term of five
years .

In accordance with IFRS 16 (Leases), the premises leased
under the 2021 Lease Agreement has been recognised by the
Group as right-of-use assets with a book value of approximately
RMB52,884,000 as at 1 July 2021. As such, the transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Lease Agreement has been
treated as an acquisition of right-of-use assets which
constituted a discloseable and connected transaction of the
Group under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of the 2021 Lease Agreement had been disclosed in the
Company’s circular dated 23 April 2021, and the 2021 Lease
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Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder had
been approved by the independent shareholders in an
extraordinary general meeting held on 4 June 2021. The 2021
Lease Agreement then superseded the 2020 Lease Agreement
upon the 2021 Lease Agreement becoming effective on 1 July
2021.

As Guangzhou Bawang is beneficially owned as to 20% by Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, the chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company, and 80% by his six brothers and
sisters (who are children under 18 of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan) with
Mr. CHEN Zheng He as the trustee, Guangzhou Bawang is an
associate of Mr. CHEN Zheng He and a connected person of
the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.12 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the lease payment paid
by BaWang Guangzhou to Guangzhou Bawang pursuant to the
2020 Lease Agreement and the 2021 Lease Agreement were
both approximately RMB6.2 million, respectively, making a total
of approximately RMB12.4 million.

Packaging Material Supply Agreement in Prior Years

The Company and Guangzhou Guangzhou Chenming Products
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Chenming”) entered into a
packaging material supply agreement on 1 June 2018, pursuant
to which Guangzhou Chenming agreed to supply packaging
material to Bawang Guangzhou from time to time at prices that
are reviewed regularly based on arm’s length negotiations
between the Group and Guangzhou Chenming for a term of
three years commencing from 1 June 2018 (the “Packaging
Material Supply Agreement”).

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a Director. Guangzhou Chenming is wholly
owned by Mr. CHEN Qiwen, who is Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s
brother. The transactions contemplated under the Packaging
Material Supply Agreement therefore constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company.

The Packaging Material Supply Agreement had expired on 31
May 2021. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group did not purchase any packing materials from Guangzhou
Chengming, and there was no transaction amount under the
Packaging Material Supply Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

The internal control and risk management functions of the Group
together with the senior management of the Group had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions of the Company for the year under
review, the scope of review included whether the premises lease
agreements were implemented in accordance with their terms,
whether the packaging materials purchased from the Company’s
connected person were purchased in accordance with the provisions
and the pricing as stipulated in the Packaging Material Supply
Agreement, and whether the transaction amount of each continuing
connected transaction had exceeded its respective annual cap.
During the year under review, the Company did not purchase any
packaging material from Guangzhou Chenming as mentioned above.
The results of the review had been provided to the Board.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the above connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions. The Company also confirms that during the
year under review it has followed the policies and guidelines as
described above in determining the pricing and the terms of the
continuing connected transactions. The Company further confirms
that the related party transactions that are set out in Note 33 under
the section headed “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements”
in this annual report fall within the definition of connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and these transactions
complied with the relevant connected transaction requirements
thereunder.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions were
entered into the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company, on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole; and the
respective annual caps are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Company’s shareholders as a whole and the transaction amounts
of such continuing connected transactions did not exceed their
respective annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ interests in
contracts of significance

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions” in this annual report, no
Director or controlling shareholder, or an entity connected with a
Director or a controlling shareholder has or had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
which was subsisting during or at the end of the 2021 financial year.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ interest in
competing business

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had
any interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

Retirement schemes

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and a
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report. There was no
forfeited contribution available to reduce the contribution payable by
the Group under the above schemes.
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Corporate governance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2021, all the code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules were met by the
Company.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 with the
management of the Company and the Company’s independent
auditors and recommended its adoption by the Board.

Auditors

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022

®RER

BAFEREMBEEN BE_FT =
—Ft+t - A=+—-HLEFE XARFD
BT EHMRAME T IAENEEER
STRIFTSIEY R A -

FRRAREEZAE

EZERREEZECEHENEGETE
ATRRE—BHNBREGE - EZERAR
ERZEECHRAREEERRABEL
FZHMEBERNAEEHEZE T -_—F+=
A=+ BL22F%E YERES
THEEHRM -

% BBl

EXPM(EEL) G EHKAARRA A
BEmER  EREREE - ERK T
ZERBFRELHREZER  BRE
BEXTHN(EB GHADEEMARA
B RN R B Z AN o

EFEARRK

BR BUR
2y

B B _F=ZA=-+N1H

FIER(EE)ERARLE —B=-—FFRK

61



62

Directors and Senior Management

B M E AL

Directors

During the year under review, the Board consisted of six Directors,
including three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The following table sets forth certain information
in respect of our Directors:

s

REBEFEARN EFEH RESFHA
K BR=Z2RTEER=2B LY
TEEZ - TREJBREFWNETER

Name Age Position/Title

#"A Fir BB oL / B8 #5

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan 60 Chairman and Executive Director

PR BUR 55 4 TERBTES

Mr. CHEN Zheng He 33 CEO and Executive Director
PRIEES 4 EFRNTTERNTES

Mr. WONG Sin Yung 67 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
BEERAE EFVBERNTES

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung 60 Independent non-executive Director
BEEEL BYIFERITES

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing 67 Independent non-executive Director
RER A& BIURITES

Dr. WANG Qi 42 Independent non-executive Director
THEL BIUNITES

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, aged 60, is the co-founder of our Group, our
chairman and has been our executive Director since 12 November
2007. Mr. CHEN is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of our Group. Mr. CHEN has extensive experience in
the Chinese herbal HPC product industry, having been engaged in
the consumer chemical product business for over 20 years. Mr.
CHEN entered into the HPC product business by establishing
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (the predecessor entity of
the Company) in 1994. Mr. CHEN was engaged in the trading of
pesticides in the PRC before the establishment of Guangzhou
Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.. In November of 2010, Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan was recognised as the “Representative Successor of Chinese
Herbal Tea Culture” by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Culture.
In December 2013, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan had been honoured as the
“Distinguished People of Yunfu City” for recognition of his contribution
to the development of the city. Mr. CHEN is the father of Mr. CHEN
Zheng He, an executive Director and the CEO of the Company.
Mr. CHEN is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company,
and he is also a director of Fortune Station Limited and Heroic Hour
Limited, the controlling shareholders of the Company,
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. CHEN Zheng He, aged 33, was appointed as our executive
Director on 20 October 2014. Mr. CHEN joined the Group in March
2007 and has been officially appointed as a director of Bawang
Guangzhou and afterwards certain other subsidiaries of the Group
since then and started to involve in the planning of sales, marketing,
advertising and promotion campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr.
CHEN was appointed as the personal assistant to the chief executive
officer of the Company since March 2012, mainly responsible for the
daily administration and management of Bawang Guangzhou. Since
mid-2013, Mr. CHEN has also been responsible for the supervision
and execution of sales, marketing, advertising and promotion
campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr. CHEN works closely with the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company on
formulating overall strategic plan and management of the Group, and
executing strategic plans in marketing, and sales and distribution. Mr.
CHEN has been appointed as the CEO and Remuneration Committee
Member with effect from 9 December 2015. Mr. CHEN obtained the
degree of bachelor of commerce from the University of Toronto in
2012. Mr. CHEN is the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the chairman and
an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. WONG Sin Yung, aged 67, is our Chief Financial Officer and
executive Director. Mr. WONG joined our Group in April 2008 and
was appointed as our executive Director on 10 December 2008. Mr.
WONG was also appointed as our Chief Financial Officer and our
Company Secretary since December 2008. He is responsible for the
finance management and control, accounting, auditing, company
secretarial and investor relations of our Group. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. WONG was an executive director of China Ting Group
Holdings Limited (03398), from 2005 to 2008, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. WONG was the chief
accountant and finance manager of Mark Wong & Associates (Industrial
Consultants) Limited from 1988 to 1992 and from 1994 to 2003
respectively. He also worked for a certified public accountant firm
from 1992 to 1994. Mr. WONG has over 30 years experience in
corporate finance, accounting, auditing, corporation administration,
and project consulting. He is an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. WONG obtained a
master’s degree in human resource management from Macquarie
University in 1996 and a master’s degree in business administration
from The University of Hong Kong in 1999.

o i i N ()

PRREBEE B R_FT—WF+AH
TtEEZAEABMHATES - R%E
AR -_TEELFEZAEMARERY B
WER TR ABETEMNARBEEIET
ANEBERNEMTFARNESE  YHA
SHEHFIEMNNEE BSREETD
WEE - BEANR ST ——F=HE
TRRAEFERNTELADE B B85
EMNETHNBEBETHRLEEE £#_-F —
—FhHAGB BREENTRABEEEETE
MEOEE BELBEETHNEE RH
ToRAEERBTAER Z KB M52
REE RIEE BEREETSNRT
FEHHEAREFELREENTEETA
E-BEBEER-_E—RE+_AAN
ARZEETARARRBEENTE & &
ZEEKE-REEN T ——_FES
Lz AEREELEFT - RAEERD
AEBEFERATEETRMRLENR
%o

BEERELE 67m RBEMANERYVBE
RATES - BEAER T N\FHNA
MARER IR TS NEF+-A+
HEZEABMNNTERZ -B-_ZF
NF+ZAE BEEETHEEZEREM
WERWEERARAWE - BRAELRSE
BB ERERETE 25 Bk 28
MERKREEBER MAXEE Z A
BEAER_ZTEERFE_ZTENFE A
ELSEETRARRA A (03398) (K &M R
B EMMRITES - R—AWNANF
E-NNANZFR-NANAFE_TE=
F HBRE + F 5T 4 1E Mark Wong & Associates
(Industrial Consultants) Limited #& {F 4 & 5t
MEMBERE - FIR— WL ZFE—
RPEGHAMEEMIIE-ZELEED
XmE g5 B AREREKIHESR
BT EERBBOFNLER - BAER
BEFAMAEEE -EEAER—NAAR
FEEREBERENANEREBELS
- R—IAWNANFEEBEREBEIRNER
=R == VA

HIER(REERERLIE —B--F5RK

63



64

Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Dr. NGAI Wai Fung (Bi{2I&18 1), aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2008.

Dr. NGAI is a director and the group chief executive officer of SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, a specialty company
secretarial, corporate governance and compliance services provider
to companies in pre-IPO and post-IPO stages. Prior to that, he was
the director and head of listing services of an independent integrated
corporate services provider. Dr. NGAI has over 30 years of
professional practice and senior management experience including
acting as the executive director, chief financial officer and company
secretary, most of which are in the areas of finance, accounting,
internal control and regulatory compliance, corporate governance
and company secretarial work for listed issuers including major red
chips companies. Dr. NGAI led or participated in a number of
significant corporate finance projects including listings, mergers and
acquisitions as well as issuance of debt securities.

Dr. NGAI is currently a member of the General Committee and the
Chairman of Membership Services of Sub-Committees of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. He was the president of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (currently known as
the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute) (2014-2015), a non-
official member of the Working Group on Professional Services under
the Economic Development Commission of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (2013-2018), a member of the Qualification
and Examination Board of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (2013-2018) and the first batch of Finance Expert
Consultants of Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China
(2016-2021). Dr. NGAI is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the
Chartered Governance Institute, a fellow of the Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors,
a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and
a member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Dr. NGAI obtained a Doctoral Degree in Finance at Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics, a Master’s Degree in Corporate
Finance from Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration from Andrews University of Michigan and
a Bachelor’s Degree in Law at University of Wolverhampton.

Dr. NGAI is currently the independent non-executive director of the
following companies, namely Bosideng International Holdings Limited
(SEHK, Stock Code: 03998), Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited
(SEHK, Stock Code: 012838), Beijing Capital Grand Limited (SEHK,
Stock Code: 01329), TravelSky Technology Limited (SEHK, Stock
Code: 00696) and China Energy Engineering Corporation Limited
(SEHK, Stock Code: 03996). Dr. NGAI is also the independent
director of SPI Energy Co., Ltd (Nasdaqg: SPI). Dr. NGAI was the
independent non-executive director of Renco Holdings Group Limited
from March 2016 to April 2018, Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable
Joint Stock Limited Company from September 2014 to January
2020, Health and Happiness (H&H) International Holdings Limited
from July 2010 to May 2020, SITC International Holdings Company
Limited from September 2010 to October 2020, BBMG Corporation
from November 2015 to May 2021 and China Communications
Construction Company Limited from November 2017 to February
2022. He was the independent director of LDK Solar Co., Limited
from July 2011 to April 2020.

o i i N ()

REITRALBVRAESHBB[ LS
- FEAETRELXREB LM =X
BZHERMNEZEEARIHEERRELE
RREEREEBABERBLENM -

REITHRAUNTRARNBIERTE
E R EEBZERAERADR(ESB
TR B D AR 8% - 03998) « B BE M E 1R
RERAR(EBEZAM RHMRR:
01238) - BRISE XK BR AR (BB R
B B K58 :01329) - MBI R M 1E 8
WEBRDBERAR (BABIA  BRHR
5% :00696) & R HELREZRBHDBERA
A (B AR IR MR IR : 03996) © £k
& £ 7K &SPl Energy Co., Ltd. (Nasdag:SPI)
MNBYEE -BELTHR T —XF
“AEZE-NFHAEARBIERSE
EERAAIBUFRNTES —F—
FNAZE_ZT_TF—AEEERE
HERDBERARBBILIIERTES =
E-ZFL+AE_ZE_TFHAETRE
AHIHBIRIERBR ARG B IERITE
£ T ZEFNAEZZE=_ZF T A
BEESBEHBEIERER AR BILIERNTT
£ - T RHFT+— AT =-—%F
TFAEREREBERRHERARS
VHEBMITEER T —+F+—AZEZ
T F_AECHRERBERKROE
RARIMNBULIFEATES IR ZE
——FE+AE-_E-ZE M AEFLDK
Solar Co. * Limited ¥y 5B 7 & % -

HIER(REERERLIE —B--F5RK

65



66

Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

of 1 b g 5 TN £ (1)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing (3R£% % %), aged 67, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 13 November 2014. Mr.
CHEUNG has extensive experience in information technology,
financial accounting, auditing and management. Mr. CHEUNG is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Since February 1999, Mr. CHEUNG has been a director and
lead consultant of Sunplex Consultants Limited, a company providing
human resources management and information technology
consultancy services to its clients (including government organisations
and private companies). Mr. CHEUNG had been an independent
director of Principal Trust Company (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly
known as AXA China Region Trustees Limited) from August 1999 to
August 2015 and an independent non-executive director of Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited from November 2003 to January
2018. Mr. CHEUNG has been an independent non-executive director
of ENM Holdings Limited (00128) since June 2016, Trio Industrial
Electronics Group Limited (01710) since February 2017, and Kin
Pang Holdings Limited (01722) since November 2017, companies
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr CHEUNG joined Self Strengthening Service Centre
Limited (Es&iR#&HOARAR]), which is a company limited by
guarantee and an approved charitable organization, as a director on
a voluntary basis with effect from 30 September 2019. Mr. CHEUNG
had held several positions, including Assistant Manager, Manager
and Senior Manager between September 1980 and July 1991 in
Coopers & Lybrand. Mr. CHEUNG had been a partner of Coopers &
Lybrand since March 1995, and had been a partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers since Coopers & Lybrand was merged with
Price Waterhouse into PricewaterhouseCoopers in October 1998
until his resignation in May 1999. Mr. CHEUNG was Director of
Operations and Finance of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants between July 2004 and April 2008 and a consultant of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants between April
2008 and August 2008. Mr. CHEUNG obtained a Bachelor of
Commerce from The University of Calgary in Canada in June 1979.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Dr. WANG Qi (EXE L), aged 42, was appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company on 17 April 2018. Dr. WANG
is currently the vice director of the Dongguan Institute of Opto-
electronics, Peking University. Prior to that, from 2010 to 2012, he
was a research associate in the Department of Electronic and
Electrical Engineering of the University of Sheffield in the United
Kingdom, and also worked at Seren Photonics Ltd, a company in the
United Kingdom which focuses on the development and
manufacturing of semi-polar and non-polar Gallium Nitride templates.
From 2012 to 2014, he was a postdoctoral research fellow in the
Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering of McGill
University in Canada.

Dr. WANG is a member of the Dongguan committee of the Jiusan
Society, the chairman of the Songshan Lake branch of the Dongguan
committee of the Jiusan Society, a vice chairman of the technological
innovation promotion committee of the Dongguan Committee of the
Jiusan Society, an entrepreneurship mentor of the Dongguan
Business Incubation Association and a member of the Dongguan
Songshan Lake High-tech Industry Development Zone Science and
Technology Association. He is also the legal representative and an
executive director of the Dongguan Yanyuan Technological Assets
Management Company Limited. Dr. WANG has been elected as a
member of the 14th session of Dongguan’s Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative (FB A RBUARE @25
+fERETEZEE®EE) in 2022. He was recognised as a special
professional of Dongguan City (3rd Class Distinctive Talent) by the
Office for the Administration of Talent Affairs of Dongguan City in
2017.

Dr. WANG obtained a bachelor’s degree in physics (magnetism) from
Lanzhou University in 2001. He studied at the Department of Physics
of Peking University from 2002 to 2008. He obtained a Doctor of
Philosophy in the Faculty of Engineering Department of Electronic
and Electrical Engineering from the University of Sheffield in the
United Kingdom in 2010.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
M1 7 o R el

1:5:;23 SW

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BAWANG INTERNATIONAL (GROUP) HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BaWang
International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 76 to 166, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on pages 101 to 108.

The key audit matter
BREEZSHE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade receivables
of approximately RMB19,969,000, net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately RMB7,990,000.

RZE-_—F+_fF=+—"H E5£BE5ENKE
FUEH AR B19,969,0007T * EtREFHEAHAR
7,990,000 7T ©

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based
on expected credit losses (“ECL"), which is estimated by
taking into account the credit loss experience and forward-
looking information including both current and forecast
general economic conditions.

BHRUEFRENBEBEEEANAREERX(E
HMEERX) EEETEEBRRERMAELE
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We have identified valuation of trade receivables as a
key audit matter because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the impairment
assessment of trade receivables involved a significant
degree of management judgement and may be subject to
management bias.

BB RWEROBREFGEESHEREETSE
R AREEZRKREARBEFGEIREEENE
RHAE - EPAREFERRRENER -

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and judgements of the Group’s ECL model
on impairment assessment of trade receivables.

BPMNEFREFEEHEEERE HRKREIRE
AHE TR HIE B 1B R IR AL &Y R 3R B I B M A o

We have assessed the reasonableness of management’s
estimates for impairment allowance by examining the
information used by management to form such
judgements, including testing accuracy of the historical
default data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information.

HAmERRERERUMEL DI HENER B
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We have also checked settlements from debtors after year
end relating to trade receivables balance as at 31
December 2021 on a sample basis.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 98.

The key audit matter
BREEZSHE

A L g
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had inventories of
approximately RMB40,815,000, net of accumulated
allowance of approximately RMB1,228,000.

R-EBE-_—F+_A=+—HBH EEBEFEHNAR
#40,815,0007C © R & F B A 4 A R 1,228,000
7‘[[0

We have identified valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because of their significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the involvement of significant
judgement and estimation on the assessment of the net
realisable values with reference to the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions.

BAEFENREMNEEESEREASTE BB
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ENFENEARHEHMGEE

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
management’s estimations and judgements on the
assessment of net realisable value of inventories and
identification of obsolete item based on their subsequent
usage and selling prices subsequent to the end of the
reporting period and current market conditions.

ﬁﬁ%%%%%ﬁfa&%ﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁTTMT -------
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We have assessed the net realisable value and utilisation
of inventories subsequent to the end of the reporting
period on a sample basis and discussed with the
management in respect of the adequacy of the allowance
made based on subsequent usage and sales, ageing
analysis and current market conditions. We have also
assessed the assumptions and critical judgements used
by the management by assessing the reliability of the
management’s past estimates.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets

Refer to notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies on pages 109 to 110.

The key audit matter
BREEXSERE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNEERLE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB61,938,000, net of accumulated impairment losses
of approximately RMB110,327,000, and RMB52,211,000
respectively.

BHIE—Z-_—+-A=+—08 KX&£EENYE-
= MEEEREEED R4 A AREG1,938,000
T FRFREELXY A ARK110,827,0007T F A
R #52 211,0007T °

We have identified impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter
because of their significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the determination of the recoverable
amount of these assets required significant management
judgement relating to items such as level of revenue and
amount of operating costs and discount rate.
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Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
reasonableness of the selection of valuation model,
adoption of key assumptions and input data by reference
to the historical information. In particular, we have tested
the future cash flow forecast prepared by management on
whether it is agreed to the budget approved by the board
of directors and compared the budget with actual results
available up to the report date. We have also evaluated
the appropriateness of the assumptions, including the
sales growth rates and gross profit margin against latest
market expectations.
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We have also evaluated the discount rate employed in the
calculation of value-in-use by reviewing its basis of
calculation and comparing its input data to market
sources.

BPBABRNAESENE L EGABEBENTESE A
RIE  wEHFAETRAAAEEREENTERE -

As any changes in these assumptions and input to
valuation model may result in significant financial impact,
we have tested management’s sensitivity analysis in
relation to the key inputs to the impairment assessment.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and
the Audit and Risk Management Committee for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
29 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

o 17 4 fay B TL AU 4 ol ML £

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ=—Z=-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3E AR® T AR® T T
Revenue EER 7 273,604 275,987
Cost of sales 55 B AR (174,573) (167,887)
Gross profit E A 99,031 108,100
Other income EH bl A 8 8,056 3,719
Selling and distribution costs HE R KA (84,307) (84,476)
Administrative expenses THRAX (29,345) (27,332)
Impairment losses of HoRBERZ
trade receivables AEEBKX 21 (940) (2,784)
Other expenses EMAX (29) (31)
Operating loss KEEE (7,534) (2,804)
Finance costs M EA 9 (1,550) (1,234)
Loss before taxation Al E 18 (9,084) (4,038)
Income tax expense Fri5 B 2 10 — —
Loss for the year attributable to KRABIEE ANEMhLZ
owners of the Company FREE 11 (9,084) (4,038)
Other comprehensive income HAHAEEKA
Item that will not be reclassified TEeWEN D EBER
subsequently to profit or loss: BB E -
Exchange differences arising on N EKERER
translation of financial statements BRAN EEHE R =58
from functional currency to
presentation currency 213 104
Loss and total comprehensive expense AN A B A A FE1GE R
for the year attributable to owners of EEkE2EX AT
the Company (8,871) (3,934)
Loss per share BREE 14
Basic =A RMB(0.2872) RMB(0.1277)
cent cent
ARM(0.2872) 1l ARE®0.1277)L
Diluted 5% RMB(0.2872) RMB(0.1277)
cent cent
AR®(0.2872)1lk ARE®0.1277)(L
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2020

—E-FHF
Notes RMB’000
=2 AR&ET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 17 78,699
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 10,853
Time deposit THER 22 —
89,552
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =8 19 27,307
Right to returned goods asset REGFEZER 20 920
Trade and other receivables B 5 & EH A E
AR K 21 24,203
Amount due from a related party JFE Us BE B 5 3B 33(a) 242
Time deposits THER 22 —
Bank balances and cash RITHEB AR 22 122,342
175,014
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B REMEN
AR K 23 81,137
Amounts due to related parties JE 1<) A B 5 5RIE 33(a) 74
Contract liabilities AHEaE 24 15,360
Refund liabilities BEAE 25 1,450
Lease liabilities HEBE 18 11,156
Provision FIRERA 27 338
109,515
Net current assets REBEEFHE 65,499
Total assets less current liabilities EEZFE 155,051
Non-current liability kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 18 325
Net assets FEE 154,726

FIER(EE)ERARLE —B=-—FFRK 77
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2020

—EFTF
Notes RMB’000
B &E AR®ET T
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital A% 7R 28(a) 277,932
Reserves G 28(b) (123,206)
Total equity T AR 154,726

The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 166 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan
F&R BUR
Director

EF
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Mr. CHEN Zheng He
FR IE %5

Director
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Attributable to owners of the Company

KARRBREAENL
Share Share Statutory Merger  Translation Other Accumulated
capital premium reserves reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BR& BARE  EERE  AHEE EXRE Hitfie  RER  EREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARBTT ARETE ARETR
(note 28(b))  (note 28(b)  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b)  (note 28(0))
(HizE2s)  (FzEos() (Mizr2sp) (FTsE2s()  (FiF2s(b)
At 1 January 2020 RZZF-F5-f—-H 277,932 1,401,815 49,887 8,468 (33,208) 9,421  (1,555,655) 158,660
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - (4,038) (4,038)
Other comprehensive income for Ht2EX
the year
Exchange differences arising on BINEBREESER
translation of financial statements
from functional currency to
presentation currency - - - - 104 - - 104
Total comprehensive income/ FREZEHA/(ZIL) BE
(expense) for the year - - — - 104 - (4,038) (3,934)
At 31 December 2020 WZZZZFE+_f=1-H 277,932 1,401,815 49,887 8,468 (33,104) 9421 (1,559,693 154,726

At 1 January 2021 R-F--5—-F—H
Loss for the year FREE
Other comprehensive income for Hip2EBA
the year
Exchange differences arising on BIEBREERER
translation of financial statements
from functional currency to
presentation currency
Total comprehensive income/ FRZEHRA/(ZIL) BE

(expense) for the year

At 31 December 2021

WZZZ-F+-f=1-H

FIER(EE)ERERLT

R -FFRH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

R R O TR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE_—%

—F+-RA=+—HILFE

2021 2020
B T -TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR F T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESET
Loss before taxation 1t B B 1B (9,084) (4,038)
Adjustments for: BT HIE L % -
Bank interest income |ITH E WA (2,140) (1,563)
Government grants IR IS 78 B (1,022) (1,143)
Reversal of impairment losses in respect of BEREWHE BMELEED
property, plant and equipment oRIENEIRE: (3,295) —
Reversal of allowance for inventories &R (B 22 s 2 [o (357) (304)
Gain on lease modification MEBH 2z W= — (375)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WEREBITE
equipment 21,017 22,363
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 11,526 7,369
Finance costs B 1% & A 1,550 1,234
Obsolete inventories written-off BMETFERE 1,220 1,401
Impairment losses recognised in respect 2 5 W RER
of trade receivables R E R R 940 2,784
Loss on disposals of property, plant BEWE BEMLEZEEX
and equipment 21 2
Write-off of property, plant and equipment WEDE BE RE&E 8 29
Operating cash flows before working capital & iEB & & Z A2 KL EL L E
changes 20,384 27,759
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 78 () /w2 (14,371) 978
Decrease in right to returned goods asset RETFESE 2R D 125 1,399
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N H b e U Zx T8 18 0 (3,095) (1,022)
Decrease in amounts due from related parties F & Ui B8 B 5 J IR R D - 1,150
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N H b S FOE N 3,035 5,461
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to F’Ef T B8 Bt 757 5B Ot 4>) /38 0
related parties (52) 27
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities EHa’E o) /8= (4,127) 4,585
Decrease in refund liabilities EEaERD (300) (2,444)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS RK&#E4AMNBEERR
AND NET CASH FROM OPERATING RETHELENESEE
ACTIVITIES 1,599 37,893

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ=—

B 13 BLAE U 1 ok (B)

Z_—F+-_A=t+—HItFE

2021 2020
=B —F _ZT_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARBT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETH
Placement of time deposits FHITE 3 (51,000) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BENLEE (1,664) (2,975)
Bank interest received 2R 1T FIE 2,140 1,563
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant EEWE W F‘% N AER
and equipment Fr18 5018 6 128
Repayment from related parties B EE 75 (8 3UE — 101
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZDFANRSFE
ACTIVITIES (50,518) (1,183)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERE (10,912) (7,073)
Interest paid B FE (1,550) (1,234)
Government grants received W B B W wHe 1,022 1,143
Repayment of bank borrowing EEBRITENK - (9,650)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METEFANESFE
ACTIVITIES (11,440) (16,814)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERASZMYORD) /B
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FH (60,359) 19,896
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENZBREREASEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 122,342 102,195
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ExgsTe
RATE CHANGES 286 251
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND REXKHERALZEY
OF THE YEAR, representing bank balances ~ Bl#5$R 77417 R IR & (M 53 22)
and cash (note 22) 62,269 122,342
FIER(RE)EREBERAT —E-Z—FF%#K
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General

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Fortune
Station Limited (“Fortune Station”), which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is owned as to: (1) 49.57%
by Heroic Hour Limited, a company that is beneficially owned
as to 22.00% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the chief executive
officer and an executive director of the Company, and 78.00%
by Mr. CHEN Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters; and (2)
50.43% by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Directors”).

The address of the registered office is at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is at
Bawang Industrial Park, 468 Guanghua 3rd Road, Baiyun
District, Guangzhou, 510450, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
manufacturing and sales of the household and personal care
products.

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
principal subsidiaries of the Group where the primary economic
environment is in the PRC. Other than the subsidiaries
established in the PRC which functional currencies are RMB,
the functional currency of the Company and other subsidiaries
is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”).

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o 13 WG 1A B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ=—Z=-—F+-_A=+—HItFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z

Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC”) of the IASB which are effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning 1 January 2021:

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Reform — Phase 2

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material effect on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior periods and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

%"‘Fﬁi‘“iﬁi’%ﬁﬁ*‘ (%0

—F+ZA=t+-BLFE

FE 7 3T 2 A 45 5T 1
7 3 = 7 B ([ = B2 &1 75 35
g )

AEE AEEBERXEAMNTHE
RetElREe(ERe £
BEg)MBERUHREERE
ZES((ERMBEREEINRESR
Ee ) BHMmaBERM%KRS ER
(TEBRFEREER]) Z BT
ZEERIABAGE T - —F—
A—BENMHFERBES -

B BHREER FLUERBS
F16SE 2 EFTA  HEHSES

BRI B mE R M RELER
Fout - EREF F-F_-H
#E BI| 28 3955 1
PR B 75 i 5 22 A
557 5% N BB Bt
& R4
S5 A0 BR B B 75 3R
EFHERE165E 2
CHES

AERERBBERYBHREER ZE
IR I F N LN TP S R
fal B BF 75 R 30 RO B 7% &
EUMBHMREANTEEREME

K,

BIEM (EEBERERAT —B-—FFH

83



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 B A Kb ot (850

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

EE%%&&%%H%@
7% ) & 2 A ([ Bl BR 81 %% 3R
S48 ]) @)
BEGENREROHITREE
MM EEEER

AEBUYREFERMAATERME
) R A S F AT Mo 48 1 AT B R B %

effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRSs

Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments®

Reference to Conceptual
Framework?®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Property, plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 cycle?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—-%

Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

The Directors anticipate that, the application of other new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over the
investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (i) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.

The Group reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods. Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
customers.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

° The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

° The Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented.

The Group recognised revenue from the sales of goods
including (i) hair-care products; (i) skin-care products; and (iii)
other household and personal care products.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the point when
control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customers and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products.

Right of return

When a contract provides a customer with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the consideration received from
the customer is variable because the contract allows the
customer to return the products. The Group uses the expected
value method to estimate the goods that will be returned. For
goods expected to be returned, the Group presents a refund
liability as “Refund liabilities” and an asset for the right to recover
products from a customer as “Right to returned goods asset”.

FTEESTTHE @)

Wr A 52 (¥&)
SNRERSHAR

BREERASERATF RN
SECERNEmIREWEKE
B R A (1 R AR 3 B R 1) - ERIE
B R B 75 i 5 22 I S5 O 5% AP AR RUME
MR BYWGRIEE AN & B WERKE
B G AR ) - BDAR B S ARE B AT
EFEEER -

AEHABEASERCE B R P WA
RE MEAZBZEERTEFPZAEEL

HREEFPNEMEAR  2BEET
FEREE BERBRNFAHNEE-

EERRHEEERDWA  BIFE()E
EEM ()EBEMSD: ()EMRERM
EAEERERR -

RY#as

EERMNEFNEERR BEMX
NerEFPE MARFERERFRP
HEMBEXNREBETER HEE
an AT & R o

BREn

EARREEFAREREHR
ANERER REFREEINHER
AEN ARSaRAEPRE:-
£ B {8 A B BB DR R AE FT R BUR
BHEY- - HRBATHRELNE
Yo AEBERKEREEINRIEESR
&1 IR P W a2 m e R 5 A
RETFE 2R -

BIEM (EEBERERAT —B-—FFH

89



90

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease, at inception of the contract or modification
date, as appropriate. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. The lease payments are discounted by using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made.

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a significant event
or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using revised discount rate.

° the lease payments change due to changes in an index or
rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in
which case a revised discount rate is used).

° a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs, less lease
incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are depreciated
over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement
date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use
asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment
loss.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable loss for the year.
Taxable loss differs from loss before taxation as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than properties under
construction are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress and immature bearer plants less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
(Continued)

Bearer plants are classified as immature until the produce can
be commercially harvested. At that point, immature bearer
plants are reclassified to bearer plants and depreciation
commences. Immature bearer plants are measured at
accumulated costs.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method, and include expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
In case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of the production overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable value of
inventories represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
and short-term deposits as defined above.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on
the classification of the financial assets. The Group’s financial
assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses (“ECL”), through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method (Continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
the “Other income” line item (note 8).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on investments
in debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors
operate, as well as consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate to the
Group’s operations.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular debtor, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair
value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised
cost;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic; or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) the debt instrument has a low risk of
default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and (i)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk when
the asset has external credit rating of ’investment grade’ in
accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

° when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

° information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination, (i) held-for-trading, or (iii)
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its plant and equipment and right of use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z

Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The impairment of trade receivables is based on assumptions
about ECL. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, bases on the number of days that an individual
receivable is outstanding as well as the Group’s historical
experience, existing market conditions of the industry in which
the debtors operated and forward-looking information at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the result of the assessment
and it may be necessary to make additional impairment charge
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. At 31 December 2021, the carrying
amount of trade receivables was approximately RMB19,969,000
(2020: RMB22,110,000), net of allowance for impairment of
trade receivables of approximately RMB7,990,000 (2020:
RMB7,050,000). During the year ended 31 December 2021,
impairment loss of trade receivables of approximately
RMB940,000 (2020: RMB2,784,000) was recognised.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Valuation of inventories

The Group makes the allowance for inventories based on
assessments of the net realisable value and ageing analysis of
inventories and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximately RMB40,815,000 (2020:
RMB27,307,000), net of accumulated allowance of
approximately RMB1,228,000 (2020: RMB1,585,000). During
the year ended 31 December 2021, obsolete inventories
written-off and reversal of allowance for inventories of
approximately RMB1,220,000 (2020: RMB1,401,000) and
RMB357,000 (2020: RMB304,000) were recognised,
respectively.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (i) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z

Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

The future cash flow is estimated based on past performance
and expectation for market development, including but not
limited to the impacts of COVID-19 pandemic. As the current
environment is uncertain, the estimated cash flows and discount
rate are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainty.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying values of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were approximately
RMB61,938,000 and RMB52,211,000 (2020: RMB78,699,000
and RMB10,853,000) respectively. Reversal of impairment
losses in respect of property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB3,295,000 (2020: nil) has been recognised
for current year. No impairment losses were recognised for
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets for the
current year (2020: nil).

Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment on a
straight-line basis between the rates of 4% to 50% per annum,
commencing from the date the property, plant and equipment
are available for use. The estimated useful lives that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use
reflects the Directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December
2021, the carrying values of property, plant and equipment was
approximately RMB61,938,000 (2020: RMB78,699,000).
Depreciation of approximately RMB21,017,000 (2020:
RMB22,363,000) has been recognised for the current year.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
not yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management
judgement is required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be
recovered.

Capital Risk Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to
maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, net of
time deposits, bank balances and cash and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital and
reserves.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE —-Z ——

B 07 U 5 oA I o (B50)

Fr-A=+—HIEFE

6. Financial Instruments 6. TR T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EMI AT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR T T

Financial assets TRIEE

At amortised cost (including cash and }%ﬁ B A (BIER S

cash equivalents) ReEEY) 134,105 145,174

Financial liabilities AR
At amortised cost = 5 DN 81,238 79,530

(b)

Financial risk management objective and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include time
deposits, trade and other receivables, amount due from a
related party, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables and amounts due to related parties. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. T A uwm
(b) Financial risk management objective and b EHREABEEREEERBEE
policies (Continued) (#8)
Market risk % R BE
Currency risk B R b2
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency RKATETNZEMB AR ZHE
sales, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. ETIEAEB K& mm
Approximately 2% (2020: 2%) of the Group’s sales is HONER B o AEBE 2% (=
denominated in currencies other than the functional E_TF 2% ) Z2HEHENE
currency of the group entity making the sale. The Group BN EBE I 2 B
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. B ARKEAB A &EEFINE
The Group will monitor foreign exchange exposure and ERH K o NEEEEIEINE
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure B nBAVNER T2 F%
should the need arise. ¥ E K HMNE BB o
The carrying amounts of the Group'’s foreign currency AREFENUIINESFBZ2EEEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at FEEREGRBARZEEEE
the end of the reporting period are as follows: AN
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2021 2020 2021 2020
—T-—F _T_TF ZFBZ-—F _T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTIT ARBTET ARBTET
RVB AR 4,557 6,458 7,405 7,523
HK$ BT 1,685 554 961 933
United States dollars (‘USD”) 7t ([t ]) 1,345 1,635 - -

In the opinion of the Directors, no sensitivity analysis is
presented because the risk is considered insignificant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group is exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank balances (see
note 22). The management of the Group considered that
a reasonably possible change in interest rates would not
have a material impact to the Group’s result.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from time
deposits, trade and other receivables, amount due from a
related party and bank balances and cash. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
monitors closely the economic environment and where
appropriate, takes actions to limit its exposure to
customers that are severely impacted.

%"‘Fﬁi‘“iﬁi’%ﬁﬁ*‘ (%0

—F+A=t+—HUEFE

6. I Bwuw)

(b)

BIEKR (&

erEREEERREBE
(#%)

T 45 B (4)
) 2 B

RZEZ—FR-ZFT_TF+
iﬁ_+ B REBAEY

| &A= &k o MR 1T & 1F
KB ® (M iFe2)  REBZE

BERANEA AR I
BHTEYEEEEELEA

FE -

15 5 B B%
#:%:—¢+—ﬂ*+—
H - x&BEz&5EERR(E
RHHKREBITE E&$%l

RECHBERMSAEER
XUBER)RESEHERE
EREEMBEHRRMIIZE
H g

$EIZFEH IKXE

E‘EW%% ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
GRAS ELHBIEEE
ﬁ%TﬁElﬁ4@ﬁ§H%
ZEEEER

REAEREEERR K&
BreEBREEZR—<XBKMEAE
AETFEERE BHEELR
ETHMERRERF - BRRKI
BRHE 77 B DA U (3 280 ERE A

RTEREFMTHEZHARIT
AEEZYEANCERE X
FEEEBRTRRITHRGE
HYRNIEEFENTPEK
g o

E)EZERBRAE —BE-—FFH

117



118

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in IFRS 9 to measure the allowance for
impairment at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
ECL collectively by using a provision matrix, estimated
based on historical credit loss experience, as well as the
general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

For non trade-related amounts due from related parties,
the Group has assessed whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If
there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime
rather than 12-month ECL.

Management considered that other receivables to be low
credit risk and thus the allowance for impairment
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies or with good
reputation.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available, reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating

° actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations

° actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

° significant changes in the expected performance
and behavior of the borrower, including changes in
the payment status of borrowers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the borrower.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EHZE_—Z

6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6.

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

—F+ZA=t+—HLFE

(b)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

Category
ik |

Description

i

/T B @)

erEREEERREBE
(#)

15 5 B2 (48)

KB EERRMA
REBRF(EERRFRE
BMTAIIER :

Basis for recognising ECL

BERHMGFEERNEE

Performing

JB1T

Doubtful

+ iR

Default

(ol

Write-off

55

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limi

For financial assets where there has low risk
of default or has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and that are not credit-impaired (refer to as
Stage 1)

REGEF2EARRK 8 TR ER
AKREERBREBELMNKRELRF
EREERBER1IZ2E)

For financial assets where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
(refer to as Stage 2)

NEBE LB KN RIRBETEER
Qmiﬁ%MX@%%M@iﬁiﬁg
WE(ERER22%E)

Financial assets are assessed as credit
impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred (refer
to as Stage 3)
EEXZEEHEZTREENRK
REMNEGFAEEATHEZER  ZE2/
BEMAREERE(ERBRIZE)

There is evidence indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
ERBETER A ABRBRENBERAER
SERBTAIEEE A KRR

ted Annual Report 2021

12-month ECL

1218 A= E 18

Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired

ERHEMEEBHRE —

RBEEEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit impaired

ERHEMEEER —
BERAEEERE

Amount is written off

ERESBCEME



6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The table below details the credit quality of the Group’s
financial assets as well as the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk by credit risk rating grades.

Internal 12-month or lifetime
Notes credit rating ECL
RABER  128RA%
M R ERBREREEEX
Trade receivables 21 Note Lifetime ECL (not credit
impaired)
V) e i &t FERBEREERLCK
BEEERE
Amount due froma 33 Performing  12-month ECL
related party
Lk A Bt 7 BT 12AAEREEEE
Other receivables 21 Performing ~ 12-month ECL
H ot e IR BT 12AAEREEEBE
Time deposits, 22 Performing ~ 12-month ECL
bank balances
and cash
EHER B1T 12BAEREEER
BOEBRERS

Note: The Group has applied simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Details are set out in note 21.

6. =@t T B ua)

b) EMEAREEERRBE
(#%)

& & B B% (%)
EEEERRYOE)

TRFNTAGRESRMEER
REEMASERARE 2K
FERBREAFEEERR -

2020
—T-ZF

Gross
carrying Loss  Net carrying
amount allowance amount

REEE
wE OAEEE  REFE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TRT AR®BTR

29,160 (7,050) 22,110
242 - 242
480 - 480

122,342 - 122,342
162,224 (7,050) 145,174

Mz AEEERBECOBEERETBERE
EAOEARFBERPEMEER
BTHRERK FBEHIRME
21 ¢

FIER(EE)ERARLE —B=-—FFRK
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s concentration of
credit risk by geographical location is mainly in the PRC,
which accounted for 98% (2020: 99%) of the total trade
receivables.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has concentration of
credit risk, as 41% (2020: 36%) of the total trade
receivables, which was due from the Group’s five largest
customers.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash on demand to meet its liquidity requirement in the
short and longer term; this excludes the potential impact
of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be
predicted, such as natural disasters.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

£F T A )
b) SHRABREEABERBE

(#&)
15 & W B (4)
EEEERRMOE)

$E@§mﬁﬁ§ﬂ“vﬁﬁ
BRBREZEEFRFE K=
——F+-_A=+—8" L%
D REWERERAATEEIB) (=
T 1 99%) °

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—

E AEBRAAEFPEHEE
b E S ERK BN

:;:*E 36%) °

/7

AEEzeMEEMBERAX
HiEERE -

ke B 1 R, B

UE R ERE N T E SN R 5y R
BN BEENER  AE
IEEM@Q%H mﬁﬁ
EMRE—REESEBER
%ﬁiﬂﬁﬁméﬂéﬁfﬁ J
%mﬁﬁ 0 N & B B R A iR
REREXNEEIBEEIEN
HM

AEEBEREFERRETEH
ReE WaREEHEE
BRPpEeF K EITEEE
%AﬁﬁﬁMﬁ%%ﬁ'mﬁ
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. =@t T B ua)

(b) Financial risk management objective and b) eHEAREEERRBE
policies (Continued) (#)
Liquidity risk (Continued) e En M BB (48)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRIFWAREFRB ZIESTE S F
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities BEENMHEAEZRGELOH
and lease liabilities. The table has been drawn up based ReZRNDEMNRKEBREEL
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities YR HEBHIRESHE
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be BZARFERBEEEES F - H
required to pay. The maturity dates are based on the HkETESRmBEMEEAR
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both interest ZEHANLBEEEHRAE
and principal cash flows. M-kPEENEERAXERE
ME e
On demand Total
or within one undiscounted Carrying
year 2-5years Over 5 years cash flows amount
RERS TR

-fR ZEEf BAIF RERAE KREEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR%TR ARWTR AR®TR AR®Tx

At 31 December 2021 RZ-E=-—#

+=ZB=+-H
Non-derivative financial T4+ ¢ REE
liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 & H &
WIE
Amount due to arelated & B B 5 ZUE
party
Lease liabilities HEAR

FIER(EE)ERARLE —B=-—FFRK 123



6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. =@t T B ua)

(b) Financial risk management objective and b) EMEAKEEEREEERER KK
policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) e En M BB (48)
On demand or Total
within one undiscounted Carrying
year 2-5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
RENRY AR

—fR  ZERF BBREF ReALE  KEEE
RMB'000 ~ RMB0O00  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AREBTT ARETT

At31December2020 R-E-EfF

+=ZA=t+-H
Non-derivative financial i ¢REE
liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 2 Kt fE
A 79,456 - - 79,456 79,456
Amounts due to related ¥ BB 75 7B
parties 74 - - 74 74
79,530 - - 79,530 79,530
Lease liabilities HEAG 11,470 120 360 11,950 11,481
(c) Fair value measurements of financial (c) LIARBEMEZEMIA
instruments
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of AANBEERE BR&EASH
current financial assets and current financial liabilities BREANLTHEHEEL LTS
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial tRaEen T -_—FK=
statements as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 E-FETF+_-_H=+—HEH
approximate their fair values due to the short maturities. RNEH WEEmMELAUR D
nEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods, net of
discounts and sales related taxes. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue for the year is as follows.

%"‘Fﬁi‘“%ﬁi’%ﬂﬁ*‘ (%0

—F+A=t+—HUEFE

EXRERDBER

EEBEEHEMGKITMME E LR
TERNBEERA SEFELER
DA

2021 2020
—E_—fF —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR® T T
Revenue from contracts with customers 7t B B2 Bt % 3R & X B 155
within the scope of IFRS 15 HEEAEFNEHKWA
Disaggregated by major products BETEERDHE
Manufacturing and sales of the household 5Kk & {E A # 32 B &4 HY
and personal care products HEEMBEE
Hair-care products EEEm 232,166 249,230
Skin-care products EEEM 1,179 1,889
Other household and personal care HEMRA &G AZERE®R
products 40,259 24,868
273,604 275,987
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BEeEWHWEANEESEYE
customers by timing of recognition
2021 2020
=B —F _ZT_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T AR T T
Timing of revenue recognition KWABANEE
At a point in time H— R, 273,604 275,987

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance, focuses on types of goods delivered. The
Directors have chosen to organise the Group around differences
in products. The segments are managed separately as each
operating segment offers different products which require
different production information to formulate different strategies.

"B Eﬁﬁ&%ﬁ“%%ﬁ QES
EREARE ARAZHITE
ERELAE BERAXNER
MBER - TEELRAREEEER
EmZR2KABAEE AN EL
EoHMREHRIAANERAFTENR
B E 15 B A BIE TR A E m R
B AmS o BEREBER -

BIEM (EEBERERAT —B-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 B A Kb ot (850

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 7.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:
e Hair-care products

e Skin-care products

e Other household and personal care products

Operating segment including manufacture and sale of other
household and personal care products have been aggregated
into a single reporting segment after taking into account that
none of which are of a sufficient size to be reported separately.

The CODM is provided with segment information concerning
segment revenue and result. No analysis of segment assets or
segment liabilities is presented as they are not regularly
provided to the CODM.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segments.

EXRERDBER @

REBZAIBENZED S
e EEEM
b B E m

. EMRARMEAEEE R

4 ) BB B TE B M K BE AN A A

EmMAEEMEE - E%FUaﬁ
—EARAREND A LNEBRS
B BEHAEREBNRESIL -

Eyiaﬁﬁ%m%%hfﬁ%“
WA D B EEHE EF
%é?ﬂ“%ﬁﬁ3u$ £ HIA
TEELRRERERME AULREH
CrETON -

SMERBERER

MTRA B R RE S BUAR
S B -

Other household and
Hair-care products Skin-care products personal care products Total
Ht AR
BEEM EEER BAEEER ch
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

SE2--% -“T-TF ZB--F -“T-TF ZB--F -“T-TF ZB--F “TC-ZF
RMB'000 RMB'000 = RMB'000 RMB'O00 =~ RMB'000 RMB'O00 = RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARBTRE ARETT ARBTRE ARETT ARBTRT ARETR

Sales to external customers HERINBEP 232,166 249,230 1,179 1,889 40,259 24,868 273,604 275,987
Segment (loss)/profit DE(BE)/BA (2,389) 4,190 211 (768) (7,384) (6,878) (9,562) (3,456)
Bank interest income FATHEWA 2,140 1,563
Other income HiA 2,621 2,156
Corporate and other unallocated 2 Zp K 5 B 7 E

expenses a3 (4,283) (4,258)
Finance costs HBER = (43)
Loss before taxation HAER (9,084) (4,038)
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Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the (loss from)/profit earned by each
segment without allocation of bank interest income, gain on
sales of scrap materials, government grants, net foreign
exchange losses, central administrative costs, directors’
emoluments and interest on bank borrowing. This is the
measure reported to the executive directors of the Company for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

7.

EEBE N BER @)

EEXBANSTBRRELAKEE L
B RES R At By & 5T R AR © 0 #
BRRREBBESBESHMNE/ (B
B) FEBRITNEKA - HERE
Freydes RSB - FERIBX
PREERAN -EZHMMRITE
RHEB I RERDE KRR
EMAARRZHTESTRE 25
EFA

FIER(EE)ERARLE —B=-—FFRK
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7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 7.

Other segment information

Hair-care products

Amounts included in the
measure of segment results

Additions to property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Interest on lease liabilities

Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on lease modification

Impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade receivables

Reversal of impairment losses
recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Reversal of allowance for
inventories

Obsolete inventories written-off

EEEm
2020
—E-FHF
RMB'000
ARBFT
TELBERE
SR ARE
VER U E
Zm 2,687
nE BERZE
e 20,195
CRELENE 6,654
HEBEFE 1,076

RENE BELR
BOEX

BENE BER
B

EuHEAaRZ
Yz

BB 5 RN
RZREER/
(REBREE)

Ef:2o) k itk
E: VS
BRABERK

FERE

DEEFERE

Amounts regularly provided to
the CODM but not included
in the measure of segment
results

Interest on bank borrowing
Bank interest income

EHARMREIEE
EREENE
g BEFAER
ABERNTE
H

RITERME
RTMEMA

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021

Hfth 2 88 = #H
Other household and
Skin-care products personal care products
HtRAR
EEEM BAEEER

2020
i 43
RMB'000
ARBETL

2020
i 43
RMB'000
ARBETL

EEERDIBER @

2020
S 43
RMB'000
ARET T

2,975

22,363
7,369

1,191




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 U 5 oA I o (B50)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—Z=-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC (country
of domicile) and Hong Kong.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the goods delivered. The geographical location of the
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets.

7.

EXRERDBER @

HEREH

AEBREEBETIESPERE G
EER)MES -

EPFHMESRIRERNE @
NEBET FRBDEEMMIEME
DREBEEERMELE(NEY
X BENRBLERAEEE) ME

JE ©

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMFEFHBA FRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF ZB-—-F —ZT-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR®BTR AR¥TET
The PRC (country of FEFTERR)
domicile) 271,087 271,622 113,420 88,746
Hong Kong B 1,655 2,016 729 806
Thailand B 201 814 - -
Malaysia 55 R g gn 661 1,535 - —
Total st 273,604 275,987 114,149 89,5652
Information about major customers FEERER

Details of the customer contributing over 10% of total revenue

of the Group are as follows:

HAEERWAERBBEI0%NE
FiERAIRMIT

2021 2020

=B —F _ZT_TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Customer A' ZEA 39,663 30,281
! Revenue from segment of hair-care products ! KB EEERD IHWA

BIER(EE)ERERRAE —ZB=Z—FFR8
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8. Other Income 8.

HipWg A

Bank interest income |ITH B WA
Gain on sales of scrap materials B B BE R 2=
Government grants (note (a)) B (i)

Reversal of impairment losses in respect of B - ME L&
property, plant and equipment BE 1B KT
Others HAth

Note:

() Various government grants were granted to the Group in respect of application
of Chinese herbs in daily products. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group recognised government grants of approximately RMB80,000 (2021:
nil) related to the Employment Support Scheme provided by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund.
There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies related to receipts
of these grants.

2020
—E-FF
RMB’000
ARET T

1,563
690
1,143

323

3,719

@ AEOESAEPEZECARERTHNE
ANEBERF#EY BE S22+ =
A=+—8 AEEHEREEBHINITH
ERFRENTEESOMRMEIFET
EBHARKS,00L(ZT=—F: &)
HBHDE - SHERBETOGREMEL R
ELEHB A ESEE-

BBER

9. Finance Costs 9.
Interest on: FE :
Bank borrowing RITEK
Lease liabilities HE&E

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021

2020
—E-FF
RMB’000
ARBET T
43

1,191
1,234



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z

%”‘Fﬁ“iﬁ%ﬂﬁé‘ (%0

—F+A=t+—HUEFE

10. Income Tax Expense 10. A5 %% B £
2021 2020
=2 _—T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®Tr
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B ERERH
(“EIT”) (TEMBERL
— Current year —AFE — —
(@  Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “PRC @ WREBEFBELCEMRGSHE(LE

EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the PRC EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

Pursuant to circular issued by Ministry of Finance and
National Tax Bureau on 17 January 2019, the small-
scaled minimal profit enterprise with an annual taxable
income below RMB1,000,000 (RMB1,000,000 included)
is entitled to a preferential tax treatment of 75% exemption
of taxable income and application of income tax rate as
20% from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021. Certain
PRC subsidiaries of the Group were qualified during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The PRC EIT Law allows enterprises to apply for the
certificates of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
(“HNTE”) which entitles the qualified companies to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Bawang (Guangzhou)
Co., Ltd. (“Bawang Guangzhou”), a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, was qualified as a HNTE since 2009. However,
Bawang Guangzhou did not have any assessable profits
subject to EIT for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

BIEKR (&

FEBED REEMGHEE

MG AEBKB AR
XA -ZTTN\F—A—HEA
25% °

BEMERSB BRMERB =
- NLF—A+tBHTEHN
BN FEMBASEAEA
R #1,000,0007t( & A R #

1,000,000 7t ) A T & /N B 4
i BT —NLF—HA—
HEZ-_Z-_—9+=ZA=
T+—H ZEXRBT5%ENT
FIEEMNBERERREK  #H
0% M TSR ER - REBEE
FENFLTFTRAREHE T
T FNM-_E_ZTF+_-_A=
+—BHEHESLER-

FRCEGBHREATEES
SR iR S ISR i SRS
X¥DBE MESZERND

XU UZE15%MERBRE -
FXT(EMNBERRARTHFEE
MDEBZZ2ZENEFREERTER
SENTEE-Am B2
E-—FR-ZIBE-ZEF+ A
—t+—HLEFE ELTEMNIL
BRBEERBHNTCERGER 2
JER T & F o

E)ERARAT —2
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

10. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 10. A5 %% B £ )

(b)  No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided b HZEZZ - FE_ZFT_FTF
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the + A=+ —HIEFEIE
Group did not have any assessable profits subject to BEBNER ENERTR
Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December BEERBBRNEERENZE
2021 and 2020. RMANBE_T_—F R

E-ZEF+_A=+—8BI1t#F
o

(€) Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman c REFNSHBENABEXES
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any BEENER KXEEEBEAS
income tax in the Cayman lIslands and the BVI for the BHE T - FN-_ZE-_FTF
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. +-A=+—BI-FEHMNF

ERENABRELEENEM
PR ©
Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss BIESGEAEBRRMEMIE S W R
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss ROFEANBNAEHE R RN
and other comprehensive income as follows: HEP) R :
2021 2020
—E-—F _—ZT-TfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARBT T
Loss before taxation 1t Bl & 1B (9,084) (4,038)
Tax calculated at the domestic income tax 1% ZN # ff 15 B 7l R 25% 5t &
rate of 25% (2020: 25%) %R B(ZZEZ_ZTF : 25%) (2,271) (1,010)
Effect of different tax rates of entities REMBEERR ,Z% &2 A
operating in other jurisdictions MEZHETE 2,929 4,924
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A MBERZRIETE
tax purpose 780 1,755
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax HBERMBAZRETE
purpose (2,379) (2,906)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMEEE MG E 1,694 202

Income tax on concessionary rate BEMEMER (1) @)

Utilisation of deductible temporary ) A A 40 MY oK TSR Y T B

differences not recognised MER (752) (632)

Utilisation of tax losses previously not B R ERH AR F E RS

recognised & 1B = (2,430)

Income tax expense for the year

FEMB/HRA

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z

10. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused estimated tax
losses of approximately RMB321,306,000 (2020: RMB311,486,000)
and RMB37,722,000 (2020: RMB36,385,000) for certain
subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong Kong respectively. The tax
losses incurred by the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC
(except for HNTE) will expire in five years from the year in which
the loss originated, while the ones incurred by the subsidiaries
in Hong Kong will not expire under current tax legislation in
Hong Kong. With effective from 1 January 2018, the tax losses
incurred by HNTE will expire in ten years from the year in which
the loss originated. No tax losses have expired during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. No deferred tax asset had
been recognised as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 in respect
of the estimated tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB355,261,000 (2020:
RMB360,274,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

%”‘Fﬁ“iﬁ%ﬂﬁ*‘ (%0

—F+A=t+—HUEFE

10. TS B £ @)

 E - —F+_A=+— E
SEEFEANMMEENIT D
ﬂ%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬂ%
A AR #321,306,00T(ZZF ==
F: AR #311,486,0007T) F1 A R
37,722,000t (BB -_FF: AR
36,385,0007T ) ° £ 1 B 3% A 5T it &9
FRA (SR EERN TEE
MBEEL BEFEBEEZABF
WiEm: mMERBEMOF LA
BAEMBMBEL BEREBERTH
MEEEG  TEEB T —N
F-—A—HR sHEBEGCEESE
MBEKERSEEELE FRI10F

ﬂ%o@ﬁ:?:—iﬂ_?_
EF+_A=Z+—BULEFER-
ﬁEﬂﬁ%%% KEE-#HZE

T FM-_ZE-_TF+_A= +
*E| EEE/\\*X%U/F?/RE’]TTTE/HU

M HABRECHRAEENTAMG
BB K -

HE_ZT-_—F+=-A=+—H"
AREBANBREEEEZEEHNARE
355,261,000 (ZE=_FF : AR
360,274,0007T) ° B K 7] 6E B FE
TR0 F AT AR 2R 4K 40 1) K 0 A AR
ZRE AR ERCEMEBEEERERHE
AENEEEE=ESR -

HIER(REERERLIE —B--F5RK
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11. Loss for The Year 11.

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

FRE B

FABREME/GHA) TIIRE :

2020
—E_ETF
RMB’000
ARBTF T
Auditor’s remuneration ZE M2 903
Cost of inventories recognised as an BRARZ ZHEENR
expense (note (a)) (M 3% () 168,191
Depreciation of property, plant and YE BERZBITE
equipment 22,363
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 7,369
Loss on disposals of property, plant and BEEYE  BEIKRED
equipment Bk 2
Write-off of property, plant and equipment  $REEY ¥ - K E & 21 29
Net foreign exchange losses M 3 5 18 2R 98
Research and development costs BWRAERZ 2 HEKAR
recognised as an expense (note (o)) (M 3% (b)) 13,586
Staff costs (note (c)) 1 B AR (M 5E(c)) 55,909
Reversal of allowance for inventories (included 17 & ¥k (& & & - [o] #&
in cost of inventories recognised as an (BREERAERN
expense) GFERAF) (304)
Obsolete inventories written-off (included in 1 B 17 &5 R & (B IEE 1R A
cost of inventories recognised as an ERMNGFEERAS)
expense) 1,401
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11.

12.

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

%Aﬂdi‘“iﬁi'%liﬁ (%0

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—Z=-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

. — = .

Loss for The Year (Continued) 1. FRE B @

Notes: Bt 5

() Cost of inventories recognised as an expense included depreciation of (@) MRAERAIZ2FERABREYE - HE
property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use assets and staff HEHE FTHAEEERERE K
costs of approximately RMB20,141,000 (2020: RMB21,278,000), Ao R4 B ANRK20,141,0000(=ZZ =
RMB11,5626,000 (2020: RMB7,369,000) and RMBZ20,066,000 (2020: T AR 21,278,000 ) AR
RMB21,967,000) respectively. The amounts were also included in the 11626000 (ZE T F: HARE
respective amounts disclosed above. 7,369,0007T) & 4 A B # 20,066,000 7T (=

ToTFHARY21,967,0007T) o K -
CHEHEDFEESEN EHESTES -

(o) Included in research and development expenses was staff costs of (o) MBEEATBENEINETIRARKE
approximately RMB6,041,000 (2020: RMB4,824,000) which has been included 6,041,000 T (— & —F 4 A R# 4,824,000
in staff costs in note 12. ) BEBREELLMEENE IRAS -

(c) Redundancy costs of approximately RMB626,000 was included in staff costs (@] BE-_Z-_FTF+_-_A=1+—RHILEE"
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2021: nil). ETRRAREENRE RO ARKEG26000

T(ZBZ—F:8\)-
N
Staff Costs 12. EE A
2021 2020
—E-—F -—T-FTEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Staff costs (including directors’ and chief BEKRKN(BEEELES

executive’s emoluments) comprise: THRAEBN&ESH2) :
Salaries, allowances and benefits e ERERER 50,795 54,033
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKEFET 8K

schemes (note 32) (M 3E32) 3,887 1,250
Termination benefits B R 18 7 - 626

54,682 55,909

Dividends 13. K E
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 BHE_T_—F+_HA=+—HI
December 2021 (2020: nil), nor has any dividend been FEVTERNKBREMKRE(ZZ
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2020: nil). “EF - E) BE2WMABEBRTER

REMRE(ZE-_FF &) -

BIEKR (&

EDE:S:

==
at
il
$
al
[
[
|
i
il
#

135



136

14. Loss Per Share 14. BIRE B

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RANR R ARBE 2 BRRER N E#
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the EEREBEEIANTNEETE -

following data:

2020
—E_ETF
RMB’'000
AR T T
Loss E#B
Loss for the year attributable to owners of AT E AR QAR E AEE
the Company for the purpose of basic and ~ fE{E TR B A K& #5E 8
diluted loss per share o)k} (4,038)
2020
—E_ETF
‘000
F i
Number of shares B EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FB A 5+ & & I £ 4 &5 18 &Y
for the purpose of basic loss per share MEFHEBEREE 3,162,441
Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss per share HRAEEE "S- —F N _FT-F
as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding FH+_ABA=1+—HIFEEXREBEERT
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 or at the MEELTBERBR AL EKR#EE
end of both reporting periods. EEETKRENEGEMER -
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15. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 15. EERESTHAEM S

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2020: six) BEfsENNB(ZE - F:

directors and the chief executive were as follows: BEERBERTHRAEBZHE ﬂu
T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 g8EFxE_EE_-_—%+_"-_HA=+—8
ILFE

Emoluments paid or
receivable in respect
of a person’s services
as a director, whether
of the Company or its
subsidiaries

Fees

Emoluments paid or
receivable in respect
of director’s other
services in
connection with the
management of the
affairs of the
Company and its
subsidiaries

Other emoluments
Salaries
Contributions to

retirement benefits
schemes

FRAREHE
DARMNESH
HEEXADR
ERHHE

ik

LR
ARANESHE
EEEMER
PR MR
EgHMe

Et b e
e =2
RNE G E
i

Total emoluments

Aitde

FIER(EE)ERARLE —B=-—FFRK 137



(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

15. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments

5. ZEERBEETHRAEMNE
(&)

g8EXE—_=_F+-A=+—H

ILEE
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
WiTES FHiTES
Mr. CHEN Mr. GHEN
Qiyuan Zheng He (Chief ~ Mr. WONG Dr.NGAI Mr. CHEUNG
(Chairman) executive) Sin Yung Wai Fung Kin Wing  Dr. WANG Qi Total
BEREE REBLE
(X)) (BR#7E) =ERLE BREERL REE%E ITHEL At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETT AREFR ARBTR
Emoluments paid or AATRHENE
receivable inrespect  AFMNEER
of aperson’s services ER#E XA
as a director, whether  EHIEH &
of the Company or its
subsidiaries
Fees we — - - 268 179 179 626
Emoluments paid or ARAREME
receivable inrespect  ARMEZRH
of director’s other HEBEMES
services in REZ AR
connection with the EHHHE
management of the
affairs of the
Company and its
subsidiaries
Other emoluments Hin i
Salaries e 2E - 133 1,067 - - - 1,200
Contributions to RINEMEE
retirement benefits H
schemes - 6 16 - - - 2
Total emoluments CHEEA - 139 1,083 268 179 179 1,848
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15. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(Continued)

There was no discretionary bonus provided to the Directors for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Mr. CHEN Zheng He is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above included those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive of the Company nor any of the
Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

5. ZEERBEETHRAEMNE
()

RZEBE_—FM_ZT_FF+=A
T+t BESEEBHHEEND4L -

REBEERLEARAERENT
B L WRBEZHFMEREEES
FHRTENREME -

BHE T+ -_A=+—81t
FE AEEEZEERHATESN
BERREREANHE(ZE_F
F M) o

FIER(EE)ERARLE —B=-—FFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 B A Kb ot (850

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

16. Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2020: one) was a Director whose emolument is included in = F
the disclosures in note 15 above. The emoluments of the

AfifmeH

16. & & #r oM
B A+

—f)REE-

(==
ﬁ@}HEAL‘AJ:
16 E - FRAEMEOR (=T =

remaining four (2020: four) individuals were as follows: TE  OAL) FENA T E BB W
B

2021 2020

—E_—fF —T-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EALRER 2,083 2,531
Contributions to retirement benefits Ei RIEF T2 =X

schemes 518 142

2,601 2,673

Their emoluments were all within nil to HK$1,000,000, E B2 3N T = &= %8 ¥ 1,000,000

equivalent to approximately RMB830,000 (2020: equivalent to
approximately RMB889,000).

) e

FHI

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals (including Directors and employees) or other
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office. =

REE_E-_—FR_F =
A=+ RLEFEHHE A%HE
TEIXAWEFAERAEZ RS H
MAT(BRREEEREE)FEME
EABBBMAKRIMBEAREEH

TT KA ZE AR 830,000 (==
—EF KN HE R AR 889,000

S A

2 RV AFSREBAE -
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment

17. 9% - BMERRE

Office Immature
Land and Leasehold Motor equipment Display Bearer bearer Construction
buildings Machinery improvements  vehicles and others  furniture plants plants  in progress Total
iR HERE BAE RRAMN
BEY #eE BRXE EBAIE RERAM RTEE £EMEY LEMEN  ERIRE @zt
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
COoSsT 2%
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-ZE
—A—A 5,494 124,780 201,698 12,249 22,708 937 43 1,137 10,465 379,511
Exchange realignment [E i, A% - - - (478) - - - - - (478)
Additions RE - 927 - 169 1,621 - - 258 - 2,975
Disposals HE - (1,150) - (150) - - - - - (1,300
Write-off Eil - (257) - - (29 ) - - - (285)
At 31 December 2020and R =T -TE
1 January 2021 +-A=1+-H
RZZ2--F
—A—A 5,494 124,300 201,698 11,790 24,306 932 43 1,395 10,465 380,423
Exchange realignment ERAZ - - - @11) - - - - - @11)
Additions RE - 372 - 43 358 - - 246 - 1,019
Disposals & - - - (45) (94) - - - - (139)
Transfer e - 3,295 - - - - - - (3,295) -
Write-off HE - - - 17) (12) - - - - (29)
At 31 December 2021 RWZZZ-F
+=-A=+-8 5,494 127,967 201,698 11,560 24,558 932 43 1,641 7,170 381,063
ACCUMULATED RiHE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZB_ZF
bl Rt 2,308 84,392 152,707 11,471 19,482 856 25 - 9,965 281,206
Exchange realignment EXHE - - - (419) - - - - - (419)
Depreciation provided for & /1 & /&
the year 247 5141 15,797 305 871 - 2 - — 22,363
Eliminated on disposals & 85 ¥ 3 - (1,035) - (135) - - - - - (1,170)
Write-off HE - (231) - - 1) 4) - - - (256)
At 31 December 2020and A =T -F 4
1 January 2021 +-FE=ft-H
RZZ=-%
-A-H 2,555 88,267 168,504 11,222 20,332 852 27 - 9,965 301,724
Exchange realignment [ERpH - - - (188) - - - - - (188)
Depreciation provided for 4 R 37 &% &
the year 247 3916 15,771 222 859 - 2 - - 21,017
Impairment losses BN BRER
reversed in profit or HEBX
loss - - - - - - - - (3,295) (3,295)
Eliminated on disposals &£ B ¥ - - - (40) (72) - - - - (112)
Write-off BE - - - (16) ) - - - - 1)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+-A=1+-H 2,802 92,183 184,275 11,200 21,114 852 29 - 6,670 319,125
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2021 R-F-—-%
—A=t-H” 2,692 35,784 17,423 360 3,444 80 14 1,641 500 61,938
At 31 December 2020 R-E_TF
+-A=1+-8 2,939 36,033 33,194 568 3,974 80 16 1,395 500 78,699
FIER (KE)EZERERAT —B=-—FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 A 15 b A K o (B50)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

17. % - BE RFRE @)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

LLand and buildings

FERERYE  BERR BN
A BAALESHAEE(ME)
AT BT A A PR B R B A8 A
o

Over the shorter of term of the lease or 20 years

T R EEY) H B AT 802 54, 204F
Machinery 15 years

25 154

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of term of the lease or 10 years
KREHERR X B MHHEAR A S 104
Motor vehicles 5-8 years

Eg T HE 5-84F

Office equipment and others 5 years
WAEREREM 5%

Display furniture 2 years

FETREME 2%

Bearer plants 3-25 years
EEMEEY 3-25%F

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress and immature bearer plants until it is substantially
completed and ready for its intended use. Upon completion and
commissioning for operation, depreciation will be provided at
the appropriate rates specified above.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, due to certain
impaired construction in progresses were completed and have
been used for production, the director of the Company
conducted a review of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and determined that reversal of impairment loss of
approximately RMB3,295,000 (2020: nil) was recognised in
respect of the Group’s property, plant and equipment in which
the recoverable amounts were determined on the basis of their
value-in-use amount.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2021
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RITE BEEEEEEE LT
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NEER B2 EXPEEE =
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FEHME AR ELEZBEMNEREZT
REgxExIT W E3 e Bk
B AERKRNREEREATASEEMN
ME BMELRZEE RATREE
FRHEERBREBAHDARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 U 5 oA I o (B50)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—Z=-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

18. Leases 18. HE
(i) Right-of-use assets () EFHERE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T

Buildings BEY
At 1 January Rn—A—H 10,853 30,425
Depreciation e (11,526) (7,369)
Lease modification HEENK 52,884 (12,203)
At 31 December Rt+=—_A=+—H 52,211 10,853

(ii)

The Group has lease arrangements for buildings. The
lease terms are generally ranged from one to thirty years.
None of the leases include variable lease payments.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
entered into certain lease agreements to extend the lease
of the current production premises, office premises and a
staff dormitory for 5 years (note 33(a)(i). The Group
remeasures the existing lease liability to include the lease
payments covered by the new lease and a corresponding
adjustment of RMB52,884,000 is made to the right-of-use
assets.

AEERREVMHHEER -
HEHR -—KR/1FE30F -
ELHEH BRI ENEE
DR/

HIFr—2-_—F+=-A=+—
BEEHE AEEETTX
HHERZEUHBEENEES
Fr WA HmANMETIFEEEER
T 54 18 & BIBR (B 5E33(a)(i) °
AREBEHAERANHEER
B BEFTEHEMEENEE
NRE HEMNMT —EBEAR
152,884,000 T K fF A #E & E
FHEE o

Lease liabilities (i) HEA®R
2021 2020
—E-—F C—ZT-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETF T
Non-current JETRE 43,316 325
Current mE 10,137 11,156
53,453 11,481

BIER(REERERDT

—EC- S5
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18. Leases (Continued) 18. HE @)

(ii) Lease liabilities (Continued) (i) EEARR W)
Amount payable under lease liabilities HEAREEMGRE
2020
—EFF
RMB’000
ARET T
Within one year —F R 11,156
After one year but within two years —FUEMFEUAA 14
After two years but within five years MFELNERFURN 45
After five years AF 266
11,481
Less: amount due for settlement within 35 : 1218 B 7 fE {5 2 I8
12 months (shown under current G reaEET)
liabilities) (11,156)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A 1& | 85 49 FE < 3R 18
12 months 325
2020
—EFF
RMB’000
AR T T
At 1 January Hn—A—H 31,132
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEME 1,191
Lease payment HERR (8,264)
Lease modification HEBNKR (12,578)
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 11,481
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18. Leases (Continued)

19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 A 5 b A I

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE —-Z ——

(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

18. & &)
(iii) MRREREZEN

(%0

Fr-A=+—HIEFE

2021 2020

—E-— —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR®TT

Depreciation on right-of-use assets FHREESETE 11,526 7,369
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAGBNEXE 1,550 1,191
Expenses relating to short-term leases %2 EAFR SR & A 105 72
Gain on lease modification BNEEEAR 2 — 375

(iv) Others

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately
RMB12,567,000 (2020: RMB8,336,000).

(iv) Hftt
BE-FT-—F+TZA=1+—
BIEEER HEMRE AL
BEA) A AR E12,567,0007C

(ZZE-ZTF: AR#¥8,336,000

JT) °

Inventories 19. 7 &
2021 2020
—EZ—F —FF
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR®T T ARBEFTT
Raw materials R4 21,914 15,816
Work-in-progress T8 & 5,950 4,510
Finished goods B2 Ak 0 10,332 3,519
Packing materials and consumable goods £ % #1 ¥ 2 38 3% @ 2,619 3,462
40,815 27,307
During the year ended 31 December 2021, certain slow-moving gz —-ZET-_—-—F+-_/B=+—HI
inventories, of which allowance was made previously over their FERN Fo#EEF(EPHLR

net realisable values, were consumed and/or sold. As a result, a
reversal of allowances for inventories of approximately

BEBBEETEMOAERFE)
WOBFEM/SHIEREM L E - Bt

RMB357,000 (2020: RMB304,000) had been recognised and M ANRBER700TL(ZFE T F:

included in cost of sales. 304,0007T) B 17 & B (B £ B 2 1 1#
REEWE AHERKA o

BIER(EE)ERERRAE —ZB=Z—FFR8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 B A Kb ot (850

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

20. Right to Returned Goods Asset

20. R[E &) 2 #EF

2021 2020

—E-—F —"T-ZF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

Right to returned goods asset REIEY 2 HEF 795 920

The right to returned goods asset represents the Group’s right
to recover products from customers where customers exercise
their right of return under the Group’s returns policy. The Group
uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the
number of returns on a portfolio level using the expected value

method.

RREENENRKRASEE#ER
REAEBEEEBRRITEEEEN
EFKOER ZEEMNBEER

H E 52

4

mL

BoNBHBMEEEEAS

BREBARKEENHRE -

21. Trade and Other Receivables 21. EZ R HMEWFIE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR F T

Receivables within the scope of IFRS 15 1R B sl & X I 55 1555

at amortised cost comprise: & [ A /Y FE Uk BR 30 a0
D NE
Trade receivables B 5B 27,959 29,160
Less: allowance for impairment of trade BB 5 EIW IR A EE

receivables (7,990) (7,050)
19,969 22,110
Prepayment for purchase of raw materials & B [R & £ T8 1~ 2 3,717 680
Other prepayments H b 78 I8 1,739 655
Non-income tax receivables IEFTIS B FE K 258 278
Other receivables B R 625 480
26,308 24,203
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 U 5 oA I o (B50)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—Z=-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for impairment of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates the
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting
period.

1. B 5 & H it FE WL FE (@)

AEBAHESIEFPFHEEHR
BENK - U TANGREHK
BIEETRAER B BNEERH
EHNNERESERER(EMBREKE
SERFEERE) NEREDT -

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ETE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® Tt ARBEFTT

Less than 3 months L HA31{E A 19,320 21,858
More than 3 months but less than 6 months % R 3{E A 18 2 R 61E A 649 252
19,969 22,110

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtors’
current financial positions, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operated and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period.

As the trade receivables related to a number of customers with
common risk characteristics and the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s difference customer bases.

AEBEFENEZRBEHAEBLRE
HEASENEARENREERE
EWE 5 RFXFEREEBKER
BREEREY2ZEBANBEER
G ik MBS A B B AT AR o
MEL A AR EBANTER
E EHRARERMETENEEL
BERLNEREBEBRNEZAER
KB ARKIE NIRRT EEL AR

FEARRERBAR - fF A RS
HOERNRRDERABHRE -

BRXZEREERSIRZEAEER
RERFEHENER BEAEEMNE
S EERRERIARATIREP
HENBERRAGTERZEEZR &
NBEBHRENEXEHERGE
— RO KENTRETFE -

BIEM (EEBERERAT —B-—FFH
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21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables based
on past due status of customers collectively that are not
individually significant as follows:

As at 31 December 2021

21.

B 5 K& H A B WK

AEERBEEPOHERKREK
A TNEBZNE HEWRIE - R

B ()
#h fE

ERBBEREERLRNT

R-ZB--%+Z-A=+—H

Less than 3 months

More than 3 months but less
than 6 months

More than 6 months but less
than 12 months

More than 12 months

AR 31E A
ZN3MEAE D R6MEA

ZH6fEAE D R121E A

Z 1218 A

Weighted
average Gross
expected carrying Loss
As at 31 December 2020 \—E-ZEF+-_HA=+—H loss rate amount allowance
It FEEE|
TEHERE K & B RAE A
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Aokt ARBTIT ARBTFT
Less than 3 months LHA3E A 0.30% 21,923 65
More than 3 months but less % 7 31@ A 18 4 761 A
than 6 months 16.38% 301 49
More than 6 months but less % 61 A 18 L 121@ A
than 12 months 100% 276 276
More than 12 months Z 1218 A 100% 6,660 6,660
29,160 7,050
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21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 21.

22.

The movements in the allowance for impairment of trade

B 5 &k E b fEURFRIE (@)
BN EREELREN S

receivables are set out below: ERWMT
2020
—E_ETF
RMB’000
AREF T
At 1 January Hn—A—H 4,612
Written off as uncollectible (note (a)) 1 58 = & U 2 308 (KT 5 () (346)
Impairment loss recognised WEBKER 2,784
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 7,050

Note:

Time Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

U]

The Group writes off trade receivables where there is information indicating that
the debtor is in serve financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs earlier.

Time deposits

0

MRBELLRA KEBMEE S B
REBAFEVBRRE LEATKRENHER
BRSO MEBACBERREEANRE
By ARFERLE) -

2. TEHHEFER/SBTEERRE €

TR FE™®

2020
— BT

— = —=

RMB’000
ARBETIT

Non-current FEMRE

— Time deposit with original maturity —HBA—FIEHY
over one year 7 B fF 3K

Current mE

— Time deposit with original maturity —=EARN
within three months TE B 77 3K

— Time deposit with original maturity —HBB=EADEN
over three months R EREF N

FIER(EE)ERARLE —B=-—FFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

22. Time Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash 2. EHER/RITEEREAS

(Continued) (&)

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

(i) AERBEEED

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARE&ETTT

Bank balances and cash RTEFREES 59,269 122,342
Time deposit with original maturity within -~ = 1& B A | 81 &9 7E B 17 3¢

three months 3,000 —

Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEY 62,269 122,342

As at 31 December 2021, cash at bank carries interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates ranged
from 0.001% to 0.60% (2020: 0.001% to 0.60%) per
annum and time deposits carry interest at fixed rate
ranged from 0.35% to 3.0% per annum (2020: nil) with
original maturity ranged from 1 month to 3 years.

e

NRZE_—F+A=+—
H - {ITHESESFHETER
FE)EFIER0.001% £ 0.60% (=
T T F :0.001%E0.60%) 5t
BEHNE FTHEZRBEBETERE
BEHBOIBUEIN(ZE-ZT
FE) BB B %1E A BSE

%o

23. Trade and Other Payables . BEZRHMENFIE

2021 2020

—E-—F _—ZT_FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR%®Tr

Trade payables g 5 M5 IE 42,695 35,108
Payable for acquisition of property, plant JERTE - BE K&

and equipment REEEEH 1,288 1,933

Promotion fee payables ERNEEER 9,271 8,681

Accrued payroll FENIE 2,452 2,833

Non-income tax payables JEFT IS T FE AT 3R 2,311 1,681

Other payables and accruals HiwENRERERER 25,510 30,901

83,527 81,137
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 U 5 oA I o (B50)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—Z=-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

23. Trade and Other Payables (Continued) 23. B R HMENRIE @
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented BIEXZRHAZAEN 2 E FER
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: HIENRE2HBAKRZER O T

2021 2020
—E-—f —E-EE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Within 1 month 18 B AL &k 16,173 26,839
After 1 month but within 3 months 1ERABERIEARN 26,522 8,269
42,695 35,108
The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days. The AEEFLS TFTHEEHNRI0ZEN
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure He REBBHERNT KRR EIE
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. R IREMEENRETEEHR
WIEE o

24. Contract Liabilities 24. EHEE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

Advances received to deliver goods B EWERR 11,233 15,360

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H

that was included in the contract liabilities as at 1 January 2021 I ERANEEEAE THILE -

is RMB15,360,000 (2020: RMB10,775,000). There was no T F—A—HHAYEEARK

revenue recognised in the current year that related to 15,360,000 c(ZE T F: AR

performance obligations that were satisfied in prior year. 10,775,00070) ° BEE B | — F [F @
THRERITESEENEERELRF
EHERIA °

BIER(EMERERAT —B=—FFH 151
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 B A Kb ot (850

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EHZE_—Z

—F+ZA=t+—HLFE

25. Refund Liabilities 25. 8286
2021 2020
—E- & T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREET T
Refund liabilities BEAE 1,150 1,450

The refund liabilities relate to customers’ right to return products
within three months of purchase. At the point of sale, a refund
liability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue is
recognised for those products expected to be returned. The
Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate
the number of returns on a portfolio level using the expected

value method.

26. Bank Loan Facilities

At the end of the reporting year, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately RMB500,000,000

(2020: RMB500,000,000).

26.

EFREESPRBEEEE=MARK
BHEE HIHEH HAFEWE
O #) E an BAERRE T LIRK
AELBEERARE ZEEFNBETE
RMESL LR NABEEEME
KREMEAKF LEHEIRE -

RITEREKRE

%ﬁiiﬁi RNEBHAEH K
BEANBERTEREEHOARE
500,000,000 7T, (_%?_$¢ AR
500,000,000 7T) ©

27. Provision 27. TR E
Provision for litigation
FEAHIREH
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®T T
At 1 January and 31 December R—H—HM
+=-—A=+—H 338 338

Details of the litigation are set out in note 35.
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28. Share Capital And Reserves

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 A 5 b A I

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE —-Z ——

(%0

Fr-A=+—HIEFE

28. RA K f#

(a) Share capital (a) Bg=&
Number of
shares
i - g
000 RMB’000
T % AR®BT T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FIE B IT0.102 @K
Authorised: AT E AR
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RKR_-_ZE_ZTHF—H—H -
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —Z -_Z &+ — A
=+—RH ZE=—%F
—A—BER=ZZT=—%
+ZA=+—H 10,000,000 880,500
Issued and fully paid: BETERENZEEK:
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZEZZTF—H—H"
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —_E-_EHF+_HA
=t+—B ZF=Z—%F
—A—AkZT=—F
+ZA=+—H 3,162,441 277,932

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

Share premium

The application of the share premium account of the
Company is governed by the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The funds in the
share premium are distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

FEERE(

&

)

E)ZERBRQF

(b) FEMEHERRBE

B # R

RAT A E N ERXZ
MERERNEEERT)
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%f’fﬂ%#%}fﬁﬁ@m/
MRENE#HE XA

BEEN E%E%#i’%qﬂﬂ
HIWER  SAARF
AR ER KR IK

P& B o

—EC- S5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Statutory reserves

Statutory reserves are established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the
articles of association of the PRC subsidiary of the
Group, Bawang Guangzhou. Transfers to the
reserves are approved by the directors of Bawang
Guangzhou.

Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang (China) Beverage
Co., Ltd, which are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC, are required to transfer at
least 10% of their net profit (after offsetting prior year
losses), as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital under the PRC Company Law and
the articles of association of the entity. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before distribution of
dividends to the equity shareholder.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good
prior years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into
share capital by issuing new shares to equity
shareholders proportionate to their existing
percentage of equity interests provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Merger reserve

On 20 December 2007, Bawang International Group
Holding (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired all the equity interest of
Bawang Guangzhou amounting to USD12,500,000,
which was previously held by a company owned by
the controlling shareholders of the Group, at a
consideration of the same amount. Accordingly, the
share capital of Bawang Guangzhou was eliminated
and a merger reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.
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28. IR AR f#4E @)
(b) 01 R AE(®)

(ii)

(iii)

& T R

AEREIREBRBETE
R R AR D) A B 7K S [ 1)
TEREARBEERERMND
NBEIERRIL - EREEW
BEEBIEMNESTSH
JE ©

BERMEBE (FE)K
B R A R TS5 B 37
MNEB A R EIBR
e B g R R AR
B 5 203 KU 8 10% #0 5
356 ) (38 78 DA €5 45 2 0 165
Bi5) = —MROEE R
EEHEEBEHPEA
AERKERNA AER
8.5 ) 5t R 4 K 89 50%
IF o EEE R EAR A
W35 58 A5 R B AT
e

—ROXTE & 5 R R 1E A
NEFENERAIA)
TR B IRE R A A
M IR B B B HE B 0 LE A )
FEIATHI LA A B
BEBRLRA  HETH
BRITRONEHRIBIRN
A& ARE25% °

& f & i

RZEBEZELF+-_A=-+
H  ARRZ2EKHBRF
BIEBREEZER(ES)
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% J£12,500,00080 F T /&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—Z

28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv) Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the operations outside the PRC into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB).

(v) Other reserve

The other reserve represents the deemed
contribution by the controlling shareholders in the
form of non-interest bearing loans to a subsidiary.
The amounts are estimated by discounting the
nominal value of the non-interest bearing loans to
the subsidiary at an effective interest rate.

29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company on 29
May 2020, the Company adopted a 2020 share option scheme
(the “2020 Share Option Scheme”) to attract and retain the best
available personnel to provide additional incentive to (i) any
director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, business or joint venture partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or a company in which the Group holds
an interest or a subsidiary of such company (the “Affiliate”); or (ii)
the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include any
director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, business or joint venture partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, business or joint
venture partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or an
Affiliate.

%"‘Fﬁi‘“%ﬁi’%ﬂﬁ*‘ (%0

—F+ZA=t+-BLFE

28. IR AN K f#18 c|)

(b) EEMEHERAZER)
(iv) ERGEE

[EXEEHERRE R EE
S 2 B R &k (BDA
RE)FMEENZAER
EH -

(v) H ks

H b B R IR I B R B
RNKE AR R EER
PIEEZBRETIE - %H
BHAERMNERTROE
BT RAZR2BERNK
EEERGEE -

29, U\H’LFE,% EVXWURGAER

BHX 5

BEBEARAAR-_ZE_ZTFHAZ
+THLEBRERF RSN EBRZE
B OARQRARRWNT —EBE_ZT_ZTF
BREAES(ZE_SFBERE
2 BERSITBEEFTOAL
WA ERHBINGZE  BE)AS
B ASEEHEEEENARHNZA
ANBAR (BB AR MEME
%*ﬁ%‘@ﬁ*%%‘§ﬁ~ﬁ%
ER REA FEZEHFIEER
BH HBAATEBRE &®$EI
5 B % AMERNES -RBEE B
M-EXR TP #HER®R RKEBA-
BMEBHAEGERRBMH FHAA
LABEIEAT = AN EMREFTR
ERERETHRNEMEEE
B X EE A ¢ Bk (i) AN 5 [ sk B B A A
MEWES B8 BE ER T
Pt REA HEBHIAE
BRABH HBHAAZNAECHESR
WHERRE -

BIEM (EEBERERAT —B-—FFH
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29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

(Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Option
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors or any of their respective associates (including
a discretionary trust whose discretionary objects includes a
substantial shareholders independent non-executive directors,
or any of their respective associates) in any 12-month period in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value
in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

No share options were granted under the 2020 Share Option
Scheme since the adoption. As at 31 December 2021, there
was no outstanding options granted under the 2020 Share
Option Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

20. LR EEHEIURNAE

BHORX5 @

EAEBRESS THRBEHEER
KARNAIBRREEAHSLETETT
SHBBARAEREETRO®
10% ° AEARAIBRERELAE B
BITRBMBETHNEREHENRT
MATER T WAl R FEMRM— AR
MERBEATSEBAARIZEHD
BITRMDE1% - BT RAREHB L
FRITEERMMISENBERA(E
REEBRIEHREREREAR
R BIUYERTESHMMSTED
EANMEREZSBBETMI2
8 A HBEAKRRBRAD0I%E &
FB\5008 8L WAEBELEARR
&) A B SR AL o

BN - - T FERETE A
KOHEHBBTR2ERTEMNBR
B-HE_ZT-_—F+ZA=+—
B #E_T _ZSFEKRETEE
T AR T RS RLHE -



Company

30. Statement of Financial Position of the

30. 7~ &) Bt #& AR R 3k

2020
—E-FF
Notes RMB’000
(=2 ARETF T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RIELETHE QA
®E -
Current assets BB E
Other receivables H B R 354
Amounts due from subsidiaries & UR BT B A B FR IR (@ 2,300
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERBES 515
3,169
Current liabilities mEBAE
Other payables H fth & 5B 1,033
Amount due to a subsidiary FES B A B FRIAE (@) 2,599
Net current assets mEEEFE 3,632
(463)
Capital and reserves BR R i#EE
Share capital % 7 277,932
Reserves [Eeke] (b) (278,395)
Deficiency of equity =R (463)

* Less than RMB1,000

Notes:

(a) The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Directors have
performed an impairment assessment based on the expected credit loss
model. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of amounts due from
subsidiaries was approximately RMB131,000 (2020: RMB2,300,000), net of
accumulated allowance for impairment loss of approximately

RMB1,542,647,000 (2020: RMB1,577,248,000).

* ZERERARMA,0007T

RABEER 2RV REREE - BHE_T =
—ER T _EF+_A=+—HILFE &
EMREBHREEBRERNET T RETMGE-
BE-_Z-_—F+_-A=+—H1 BEKRHEB
AREASENAAREIZ00T(ZE =2
F: AR %2,300,0007T) © Ak R R EER
#NR 1542647000 (Z T =T F: AR
1,577,248,0007T) °

FIER(EE)ERARLE —B=-—FFRK
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30. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

30. AR 8] Bt # AR R 3k (@)

M ()

(b)  Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: b REEFREHEROT
Translation Accumulated
Share premium reserve losses Total
BRAHE EREE RitER @
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
(note 28(b)) (note 28(b))
(¥ &% 28(0)) (Bt 7 28(b))
At 1 January 2020 R-_ZE-_ZTF—H—H 1,401,815 (111,375) (1,565,117) (274,677)
Total comprehensive income/ R 2E U A/ (X H)
(expense) for the year R — 997 (4,715) (3,718)
At 31 December 2020 and R-E-_ZTE+_-H
1 January 2021 =t+—8x&
—E-—%—AF—8 1,401,815 (110,378) (1,569,832) (278,395)
Total comprehensive income/  FRZ2EW A/ (ZH)
(expense) for the year Fat ) — 640 (1,600) (960)
At 31 December 2021 RZE=Z—F
+-A=+—H 1,401,815 (109,738) (1,571,432) (279,355)
31 Capital Commitments 31. EXREIE
2020
—EFTF
RMB’000
AR®ETTT
Capital expenditure in respect of the RIS =< P R &
acquisition of property, plant and EHEENE BEK
equipment contracted but not provided in & & #) & R A JE
the consolidated financial statements 343
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=—Z=-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

32. Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions

(a)

(b)

The PRC

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”)
organised by the local authority whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Scheme based on certain percentages of the eligible
employee’s salaries. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees.

Hong Kong

The Group also maintains the MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong in accordance with
the requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and related regulations. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, of
which the contribution was matched by employees and
subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per employee.

The Group has no other obligations for payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the
contribution described above. Forfeited contributions in respect
of unvested benefits of employees leaving the Group’s
employment cannot be used to reduce ongoing contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
RMBS3,887,000 (2020: RMB1,250,000) represents contributions
payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the plans.

32. RAKE R T SR

(a)

(b)

EXRENE

RETFTEBELSEHER PE
MEBARZEMPEBRE
BT # 48 4R A 2 TE BR BRI
1& M &T 8 (Tax a1 &11) - B R
BRAAIAERIEZ-—FEAS
Lo 1A &% 5t 8 5K - B 1 BT
BEREXNEKEENEE
BIRE -

FEHME

REBERBIMERBEREE([RIE
&8 BB RG RARE
AEENSHBENAKRENE
BREERYBREEFE -8R
RIS CEERAEHAME
ENH BAXEAENZES
A - AKEZBEBIEZ5%
A B - BREEOHK
FRAETT1,500 °

AEEEBRT LA RS WEE
tEBSES M RIKREMEN
BEM BEEMBEOARBEBER
EHRHERRERAA BIER DR
BHER -

BEaXRPz2RAIHARE
3887000 (- T -FTF: AR
1,250,0007T) * B A £ B Gt 72 S 51 2
FIEM—TEB DB ZHR o

BIER(REERERDT

—EC- S5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(%)

—F+=A=t+—ALFE

33. Related Party Transactions

B.HEBHIRS

(a) Related party balances (a) FABKFAERER
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial [ﬁ,% SEMBERRSBEEREIN
statements, the following balances were outstanding at RERMBREREMN &8N
the end of the reporting period: ‘|? :

Amounts due from/(to)

related parties

Maximum outstanding amount
during the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEER

Bl () BH®ARE MEEAENEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—¥=-% _T-TF =B--F _T_ITF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®FTT ARETR ARBFL
Non-tradle related HE G
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., E/MNE Tt mER A F
Ltd. (‘Guangzhou Bawang’) (note ) ([N B ) (FiH5H) 242 242 242 242
Trade related B51HH
Guangzhou Chenming Paper BNTRAKRERAF
Products Company Limited (TEMEH])
(“Guangzhou Chenming”) Bk
(notes ii and i = ()
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging BMTWEXBE M BER
Materials Co., Ltd. (‘Guangzhou AR(BMER]
Qiancal”) (notes ii and i (B & i) (22) (72)
(22) (74
Notes: B 5

(i

(i)

Guangzhou Bawang was ultimately 100% owned by Mr. CHEN Zheng
He. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the management
of the Group considered the credit risk of the amounts has not been
increased significantly and thus the allowance for impairment
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Guangzhou Chenming and Guangzhou Qiancai were under the control
of the close family members of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the director and the
chairman of the board of directors.

The credit term granted by Guangzhou Qiancai is 30 days based on the
invoice date. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the amount due to
Guangzhou Qiancai was unsecured, interest-free with 30 days (2020:
30 days) credit term and aged within 30 days (2020: 30 days).
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A=+—BLEE AEEEERE
RAEFERRSE —H &ﬁﬁ%#
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@%mﬁﬂ%ﬁ%%éﬁwoﬁz
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

B 07 A 5 b A I

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE —-Z ——

33. B AR Z |

(%0

FHoA=+—ALFE

(b) Related party transactions (b) RBARXS
The Group had the following material transactions with its AREBEE@HRALTETUAT
related parties: EARH
2021 2020
—E—— —EFTF
Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
XEME ARBFRT ARETET
Guangzhou Qiancai Purchase of packaging materials
(notes i and iv) 99 202
B3 B ER BB R (B B i Ay )
Guangzhou Bawang Rental fee of production plant and
office premises (notes i, ii and iii) 12,432 8,234
HSEBBEMPERASNES
(B =i, i A i)
Notes: B 5

(i)

The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of
business and the basis of consideration for the transactions is the
prevailing market price.

On 1 December 2017, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang
entered into a lease agreement with 3 years terms of lease from 1
December 2017. The monthly rental fee for the production premises,
office premises and a staff dormitory are approximately RMB719,000 in
total. Details of which were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 1 December 2017. On 17 November 2020, Bawang Guangzhou
and Guangzhou Bawang entered into a new lease agreement with 1
year of lease from 1 December 2020. The monthly rental fee for the
production premises, office premises and a staff dormitory are
RMB1,040,000 in total. Details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 17 November 2020. On 23 April 2021, Bawang
Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang renewed the lease agreement.
The monthly rental fee for the production premises, office premises and
a staff dormitory are RMB1,090,000 in total for the period from 1 July
2021 to 30 June 2024 and the monthly rental fee will be increased to
RMB1,240,000 in total for the remaining period from 1 July 2024 to 30
June 2026. Details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 April 2021.

BIEKR (&

E)ZERBRQF

BEERR LRRZ TR —RE%E
BERRABEBBREDLET 5
REERERBITHE-

R-_ZE—+HE+_-_A—H HBIE
MEEMNBTERBERZE 58—
A—RE HEHRAE-T—t
F+Z_ARIF-HXERE B2
BHRMBRIBEANARBENA
AR#719,0007T - FIFE#HR QA=
T—+tF+ A —BEMHRE-
R-ZZT_TF+—A++tB BF
BEMNEENBEETEET —HREE
WE -WASMAIBRIEEA_-Z
—EF+ R —BRABAE—FH
FHERE ABESEFHNAAR
#1,040,0007C ° SFBEFA A ﬁ:?
ZEF+ A+ EBHEHRE
—E-—FMA=+=8" %If
MAEMNBEES T HEHZ
ZE - F+tA—HAEZZT-_MWF
ANA=ZTBHEMNEERE - HiA
SHAREIBEEHAMEBER
AR 1,000,000t KA =ZZF =Y
F+A—BE-ZE-_R"EXA= +
AHBESENEAREETAR
thwwm BRAFBHIINE
NEIBAZSE-_—FOA-_1+=
EIE/]/\/:O: °

—EC- S5
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33. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

(c)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of such lease liabilities is
approximately RMB53,129,000 (2020: RMB11,143,000). During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has made lease payment of
approximately RMB12,432,000 (2020: RMB RMBS8,234,000) to the
related company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the related party
transactions constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided
in the “Report of the Directors” section to the annual report.

38. @R RS @)

(b) FAEEF X5 (&)
B« ()

(i)

()

RZE=Z—F+=ZA=+—81,
EEHAEEENEEEELNAA
R #53,129,00070( =T = T F :
AR #11,143,0007C) c B E = &
——Ff+ZA=Z+—BLEFE &
BEDHMEBARINTTHARE
12,432,000t M@ (Z T =T F :
AR #8,234,0007T) ©

RZZTZZZTF+=-A=+—HH
M BEEAIRXZEXK MRS
VYAEMATHNHER FAFER
BEX G FMBRBEIMAEZ KA
BREeEFERS(EFg®RE | —

BERED -

(v)  The related party transactions constitute connected transactions or (iv) Bl TR SFE ETRAE4AE
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the FFATHBEISKNFTERER
Listing Rules, however, they are exempt from the disclosure S HEERPEST FTHHEBE
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. VAAE T 2 B EE -
Compensation of key management personnel (c) FEEBAEHM
The remuneration of key management personnel of the AREBRFATEEEAED
Group during the year was as follows: B &5 a0 T
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFTT
Short-term benefits EE 4,277 4,947
Post-employment benefits BB RET 885 251
5,162 5,198
The remuneration of key management personnel of the REBFEEEABE ZHRMAH

Group was determined by the board of Directors, in
consultation with the remuneration committee, having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
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Financing Activities

34. Reconciliation Of Liabilities Arising From

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

financing activities.

4. MEEHELMEEHR

TRHALAEERERE DTS W
BEEY ERERENMIRENE
P-MEGZHELANBBERAER
EFARAKRREREREFARAERN
EXTHOEARELIDHRETAREN
BfE-

Lease liabilities ME&E
Non-cash changes
FREEL
Finance Lease
1 January Financing costs modification 31 December
2020  cash flows incurred (note 18) 2020
—T_FF BmE  BEEH HEEN —_T_FF
—RA—H HeR8 REKK (M#18) +—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%®TRT ARBTRT ARBTR ARETT
Bank borrowing RITIER 9,650 (9,693) 43 — —
Lease liabilities MERE 31,132 (8,264) 1,191 (12,578) 11,481
BIER(EE)EREBRLF —BZ-—FFRH
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35. Litigation

In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a former subcontractor
against Bawang (China) Beverage Co., Limited (“Bawang
Beverage”) in People’s Court of Songjiang District of Shanghai
in respect of a dispute in the material processing contract
between the former subcontractor and Bawang Beverage.

On 20 June 2014, Shanghai No. 1 Intermediate People’s Court
gave its final ruling that Bawang Beverage was liable to the
former subcontractor for an amount of approximately
RMB643,000 and a legal cost of approximately RMB19,000.
Accordingly, provision for litigation in amount of approximately
RMB662,000 was recognised in the profit or loss and an
amount of approximately RMB324,000 was settled in 2014. As
at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the remaining provision of
approximately RMB338,000 has not been settled.
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35. EEFEIA

BH - —RBA0¥EBAE LSRR
ANBREB L Z AT 2 1 M B E(F
BB BERAB(TFERM]) M
B RF T & B 4440 1 85 T eR R 3R
FEFFAR ©

FPBE—"FRARZERERR 2T —
MENAZTHAEHRKRE R B
THHERAMSEBAINOAR
#643,000 T M EEE S MO AR
19,000 T KSR FAE © L AN » FRAART IR
Bt AR #662,0007T B # HER R
GAERMEMEEWRERPAE
thE R 4 ARE324,000LE EEH
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36. Principal Subsidiaries 36. TEH B A 7
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December R-_E-—FR-_E-_ZTFE+_H4
2021 and 2020 are as follows: Z+t—B ARAEEBHERAF
BT

Place of

incorporation/
establishment

Issued and
paid-up/registered

Proportion ownership interest and

Name and operation  capital voting power held by the Company  Principal activities
ARRBAENERER
8 RIRKE Y BRTRBEESR BEEHREELH TEEY
2021 2020
=$--F | -3-Tx
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
HEE BE HE fl#
% % % %
Forever Giants Limited BVI USD1 100 - 100 — Inactive
Forever Giants Limited RERZHES = FREES
Bawang International Group Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding and trading of
Holding (HK) Limited household and personal care
products
FIER ﬁ@% R (& E) N BT RE® Hx& SR AR
BRA FAEEER
Hong Kong Bawang International  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Trading of household and personal
Trading Limited care products
EEBIBRESHNA Bt BT EHEXAREAERER
Bawang Guangzhou (note (a)) The PRC USD67,500,000 - 100 — 100 Manufacturing and trading of
household and personal care
products
B EM (P (@) HE % 71.67,500,000 RERSHZARAAERER
Bawang Beverage (note (a)) The PRC HK$180,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive
BEHH (@) i 7 71.180,000,000 FRNEEB
Guangzhou Fanmei Electronic The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 e-Commerce and trading of
Business Company Limited* household and personal care
(note (a)) products
BMNEBEFEABERAA Bl AE#1,000,0007T EFABREHKAR
(i3t (@) EAEREM
Guangzhou Bawang Trading The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Trading of household and personal
Company Limited* (note (a)) care products
BNBETESHERRA F AR #1,000,0007T EHRBREAAERER
(P 3£ ()
Note: k=3
(a) These entities are wholly foreign owned and limited liability companies (@) =z ggﬁ;h‘/\q: Bl AR N8 X =h:0]
established in the PRC. EREELD
* For identification purposes only * & H2 51
BIER(EE)ERERRAE —ZB=Z—FFR8

165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 07 B A Kb ot (850

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=—Z=-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

36. Principal Subsidiaries (Continued) 36. TEME LT @
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the FEREINEARARIZEERAETEY
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets BREEEENEEMNABZHE
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries NEl e KRQ A EEREREME MM
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of BRARZzHEBBSERBRITEM
excessive length. NEUFHTR o
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the REFERE—FEHR BEMEM
end of both years or at any time during the years. ME AR BITEMERER -
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other REFRE R RREAEMRE
wholly-owned subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A MEIEEANETENB AR 2%
summary of these subsidiaries are as follows: B ARz EBEBBumuT

Number of subsidiaries

MELQRHE
Principal activities Principal place of business 2021 2020
FEXEK FTEEKRMB —E-—F _T_TF
Investment holding The BVI 2 2
REZEK REELHS
Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1
REZER )
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2020 2019 2018 2017
R ZE-NF —F-N\F Z—FT—+t#F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT ARBTT AR®BTT
Result E4
Revenue EER 275,987 258,158 293,922 264,215
(Loss)/profit before taxation  #¢ Al (&5 8 ) /# & (4,038) (15,164) (1,196) 19,231
Taxation iRl — 9,064 — 4)
(Loss)/profit for the year KRB AEN
attributable to the owners 2 E A (E518)/
of the Company b (4,038) (6,100) (1,196) 19,227
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Property, plant and mE - BEREE
equipment 78,699 98,305 115,021 132,403
Prepaid advertising fee BNESER 33 - 649 392
Net current assets REEEFE 65,499 53,732 50,661 37,843
Total assets less current BEEAERRE
liabilities afE 155,051 182,426 165,682 170,246
Net assets EEFHE 154,726 158,660 165,682 170,246
Capital and reserves EERRfHE
Share capital % 2 277,932 277,932 277,878 277,878
Reserves B (123,208)  (119,272) (112,196  (107,632)
Total equity ERBE 154,726 158,660 165,682 170,246
(Loss)/earning per share W& (E518) /& F
Basic and diluted (RMB) ~ EL 7K [ # 58
(ARE) (0.0013) (0.0019) (0.0003) 0.0060

FIER(EE)ERERLT

—E=-FEH
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* for identification purposes only
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